# Optimisation of the drill and blast work in the open pit Rabenwald mine of Rio Tinto Minerals

**Author: Florian Bauer** 

Leoben, February 2007

# STATEMENT OF ORIGINALITY

"I hereby declare that this report is my own work and that it contains, to the best knowledge and belief, no material previously published or written by another person nor material which to a substantial extent has been submitted for another course, except where due acknowledgement is made in the report."

### SUMMARY

I have been assigned by the Naintsch Mineralwerke to evaluate the As-Is State at the Rabenwald mine and the State of the Art in drilling and blasting. Therefore all aspects of drilling and blasting were examined, from the planning process at the beginning, a wall surveying program, the drilling process, the charging of the holes up to the documentation and measurement of ground vibrations and blasting results.

It was found that in many cases to achieve the aim of being State of the Art a better utilisation of already existing resources is recommended. Nevertheless some aspects need a bigger investment, like a new automatic drilling and GPS-guided surface crawler.

What is common for all aspects is that they need a thorough planning process that works in the background of all of them. This is also the objective for the long term, to build up a management system for the whole drilling and blasting process as a central guidance and planning tool to make the process more economic and safer for all involved people.

# **CONTENTS**

Statemen	Statement of Originalityii							
Summary	immaryi							
Contents	Contentsir							
1. Intro	oduction	1						
1.1.	The Deposit	1						
2. Proj	ect Overview	3						
3. As-1	s State	4						
3.1.	Layout of the blasting work	4						
3.2.	Surveying of the Wall	4						
3.3.	Drilling	4						
3.4.	Quality of the Boreholes	5						
3.5.	Detonators	5						
3.6.	Way of Initiation	5						
3.7.	Blastin Agent / Column Design	5						
3.8.	Loading the Holes	6						
3.9.	Documentation of the Blast	7						
3.10.	Documentation / Measuring the Blasting Result	11						
3.11.	Noise and Vibration – Neighbours	11						
3.12.	Clearing of the Blasting Area	11						
4. Take	en Measurements and Data Gathered	13						
4.1.	Surveying with the Theodolite	13						
4.2.	Surveying of the Wall with the 3G-System	14						
4.3.	Quality of the Boreholes	17						
4.4.	Documentation of Charging	23						
4.5.	Vibration Measurement	24						
4.6.	Noise Measurements	26						
5. Ana	lysis of data measured	27						
5.1.	Analysis of blast geometry	27						
5.1.	I. Burden and Spacing	27						
5.1.2	2. Powder Factor	29						
5.2.	Positioning of the Drill Rig	30						
5.3.	Wall Surveying with 3G System	31						
5.4.	Quality of the Borehole	32						
5.5.	Analysis of Vibration Measurements	33						
5.6.	Analysis of Noise Measurements	35						
6. Dev	iations Between Planned and Monitored Data	36						
6.1.	Borehole Specifications	36						
6.2.	Blasting Pattern	36						
6.3.	Powder Factor	42						
6.5.	Vibrations	44						
7. The	State of the Art in Drilling and Blasting	46						
7.1.	Planning a Blast	46						
7.1.	1. Review on the planning process of the blast	46						
7.2.	Surveying of the Wall	46						
7.2.1	1. Review on the Actual Process of Surveying the Wall	47						
7.3.	Drilling	48						
7.3.	I. Smart Rig System	48						

	7.3.2	2. Review on the Actual Drilling	. 50
	7.4.	Measuring Borehole Deviations	. 51
	7.5.	Detonators	. 51
	7.5.1	. Review on the Electric Detonators	. 51
	7.6.	Way of initiation	. 52
	7.6.1	. Review on the actual way of initiation	. 52
	7.7.	Blasting Agent/Column Design	. 53
	7.7.1	. Review on the column design	. 53
	7.8.	Loading the holes	. 53
	7.8.1	. Review on Loading the Holes	. 54
	7.9.	Documentation of the Blast	. 54
	7.10.	Documentation of the Blasting Result	. 54
	7.10	.1. Review on Documentation of the Blasting Result	. 55
	7.11.	Ground Vibrations and Noise Measurements	. 56
	7.11	1. Review on the actual state in ground vibrations and noise measurements	. 56
8.	Gap	Analysis	. 57
	8.1.	Layout of the Blasting Work	. 57
	8.2.	Surveying the wall	. 57
	8.3.	Drilling	. 57
	8.4.	Quality of the Boreholes	. 57
	8.5.	Detonators/Way of Initiation	. 58
	8.6.	Blasting Agent/Column Design	. 58
	8.7.	Loading the Holes	. 58
	8.8.	Documentation of the Blast	. 58
	8.9.	Documentation of the Blasting Result	. 58
~	8.10.	Ground Vibrations and Noise	. 58
9.	Ecor	nomic and Safety Benefits	. 60
	9.1.	Surveying of the Wall	. 60
	9.2.	Drilling	. 60
	9.3.	Quality of the Boreholes	. 60
	9.4.	Detonators	. 61
	9.5.	Way of initiation	. 61
	9.6.	Blasting Agent.	. 61
	9.7.	Loading the Holes	. 61
	9.8.	Documentation of the blast	. 62
	9.9.	Documentation of the Blasting Result	. 62
10	9.10.	Noise and vibrations	. 62
Ц	10.1	Short Torma Deplication	.03
	10.1.	Short Term Realisation	. 03
	10.2.	Long Term Realisation	.03
D:	10.3.	LUIIS I CIIII INTAIISAUUII	65
נת ג 1	nendiv	A. Drill Operator's and Shot-Firer's Blast Decords	67
Λ	ppendix	R. Vibration Event Reports	207 20
Γ1] Δ	ppendix	C. Surveyed Shot Plans	02
Δ	ppendix	D. Pictures of the Surveyed Walls with the 3G-Software	96
Δ1	nnendiv	F: Data Sheets from Loading the Holes	105
11	ppenuix	D. Data Sheets from Doughing the froites	105

# Figures

Figure 1: Longitudinal section through the talc deposit	1
Figure 2: Direction of initiation of a blasthole	5
Figure 3: The blasters truck with the crane mounted to it	6
Figure 4: Drill operator's record of the 1 <sup>st</sup> blast	8
Figure 5: Shot-firer's record of the 1 <sup>st</sup> blast	9
Figure 6: Shot-firer's plan of the 1 <sup>st</sup> blast	10
Figure 7: Blast vibrations event report of the 1 <sup>st</sup> blast	12
Figure 8: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole starting points from the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	13
Figure 9: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole staring points from the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	14
Figure 10: 3G-front-picture from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	15
Figure 11: 3G-side-picture from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	15
Figure 12: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	16
Figure 13: Plan view of the wall from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	16
Figure 14: Borehole deviation display from the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	18
Figure 15: Front view of the boreholes from the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	19
Figure 16: Borehole deviation display for the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	19
Figure 17: Borehole deviation display from the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	20
Figure 18: Detailed display of hole number 3 from the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	21
Figure 19: Detailed display of hole number 9 from the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	21
Figure 20: Map of the Rabenwald mine showing the blasting areas and the neighbours	21
Reithofer and Stoppacher	24
Figure 21: A DIN 4150 diagram showing the vibration velocity versus frequency	25
Figure 22: Results from noise measurements	26
Figure 23: Explanation of spacing S and burden B	27
Figure 24: Average burdens and spacings from the eight surveyed blasts Figure 25: Difference between smallest and biggest burdens and spacings for the eight	28
surveyed blasts	28
Figure 26: Average powder factors for blast 3 to blast 10	29
Figure 27: Changing powder factors per hole for blast 9	30
Figure 28: Changing powder factors per hole for blast 10	30
Figure 29: Borehole direction resulting from slight turns of Drillrig	31
Figure 30: Example of a too long drilled borehole from the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	32
Figure 31: Measured and predicted vibration velocities	34
Figure 32: Correlation of predicted and measured vibration velocities	34
Figure 33: Log maximum vibrations versus log scaled distance diagram	35
Figure 34: Comparison of recorded and measured burdens	37
Figure 35: Comparison of recorded and measured spacings	38
Figure 36: Comparison of recorded and monitored average blasted area per hole	39
Figure 37: Intended direction where muck should be thrown	40

Figure 38: Direction where the muck was actually thrown by changing the ignition	
sequence (delay numbers shown)	40
Figure 39: Different powder factors before and after the change of ignition sequence for blast Q	11
Figure 40: Different energy/borehole before and after the change of ignition sequence	41
for blast 9	41
Figure 41: Comparison of recorded and planned powder factors	42
Figure 42: Comparison of mass explosive recorded and charged for blast 8	43
Figure 43: Comparison of mass explosive recorded and charged for blast 9	43
Figure 44: Comparison of vibration values	45
penetration rate.	48
Figure 46: Comparison of conventional positioning and HNS	49
Figure 47: Atlas Copco Roc F9 SmartRig Surface Crawler	50
Figure 48: The ikon-system of Orica, showing the electronic detonator, the blaster, the	
logger and the planning software	51
Figure 49: Drawing of an ideal blasting column	52
Figure 50: Example of an anto traffer from Dynonober	54
Figure 51: Drill operator's record of the 2 blast	67
Figure 52: Shot-firer's record of the 2 blast	68
Figure 53: Shot-firer's plan of the 2 blast	69
Figure 54: Drill operator's record of the 3 <sup>rd</sup> blast	70
Figure 55: Shot-firer's record for the 3 <sup>rd</sup> blast	71
Figure 56: Shot-firer's plan of the 3 <sup>rd</sup> blast	72
Figure 57: Drill operator's record of the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	73
Figure 58: Shot-firer's record of the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	74
Figure 59: Shot-firer's record of the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	75
Figure 60: Drill operator's record of the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	76
Figure 61: Shot-firer's record of the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	77
Figure 62: Shot-firer's plan of the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	78
Figure 63: Drill operator's record of the 6 <sup>th</sup> blast	79
Figure 64: Shot-firer's record of the 6 <sup>th</sup> blast	80
Figure 65: Drill operator's record of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	81
Figure 66: Shot-firer's record of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	82
Figure 67: Drill operator's record of the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	83
Figure 68: Shot-firer's record of the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	84
Figure 69: Shot-firer's plan of the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	85
Figure 70: Drill operator's record of the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	86
Figure 71: Shot-firer's record of the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	87
Figure 72: Shot-firer's plan of the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	88
Figure 73: Vibrations event report from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	89
Figure 74: Vibrations event report from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	90

Figure 75: Vibrations event report from the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	91
Figure 76: Vibrations event report from the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	92
Figure 77: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole starting points from the 3 <sup>rd</sup> blast	93
Figure 78: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	93
Figure 79: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	94
Figure 80: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 6 <sup>th</sup> blast	94
Figure 81: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	95
Figure 82: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	95
Figure 83: 3G-front-picture from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	96
Figure 84: 3G-side-picture left from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	96
Figure 85: 3G-side-picture right from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	97
Figure 86: Plan view of the wall from the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	97
Figure 87: 3G-front-picture of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (left side)	98
Figure 88: 3G-side-picture of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (left side)	98
Figure 89: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (left side)	99
Figure 90: Plan view of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (left side)	99
Figure 91: 3G-front-picture of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (right side)	100
Figure 92: 3G-side-picture of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (right side)	100
Figure 93: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (right side)	101
Figure 94: Plan view of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast (right side)	101
Figure 95: 3G-front-picture of the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	102
Figure 96: 3G-side-picture from the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	102
Figure 97: Plan view from the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	103
Figure 98: 3G-front-picture of the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	103
Figure 99: 3G-side-picture of the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	104
Figure 100: Plan view of the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	104

# Tables

Table 1: Specifications of used explosives	6
Table 2: Overview of the gathered data	
Table 3: Comparison of vanishing lights from the 6 <sup>th</sup> and 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	
Table 4: Overview of borehole deviations	
Table 5: Data sheet of the 1 <sup>st</sup> blast	
Table 6: Measured vibration velocities	
Table 7: Summary of average burdens and spacings	
Table 8: Average powder factors	
Table 9: Summary of derived data from 3G-system	
Table 10: Summary of measured borehole deviations	
•	

Table 11: Comparison of measured, calculated and drill operators records of borehole	
specifications	36
Table 12: Comparison of recorded and measured burdens and spacing	37
Table 13: Comparison of recorded and monitored average blasted area per hole	38
Table 14: Comparison from the shot-firer's and the monitored powder factor	42
Table 15: Comparison of vibration values	44
Table 16: Two examples for a possible drill length saving	47
Table 17: Possible documentation sheet for the blasting result	55
Table 18: Data sheet of the 2 <sup>nd</sup> blast	105
Table 19: Data sheet of the 3 <sup>rd</sup> blast	107
Table 20: Data sheet of the 4 <sup>th</sup> blast	108
Table 21: Data sheet of the 5 <sup>th</sup> blast	110
Table 22: Data sheet of the 6 <sup>th</sup> blast	111
Table 23: Data sheet of the 7 <sup>th</sup> blast	113
Table 24: Data sheet of the 8 <sup>th</sup> blast	115
Table 25: Data sheet of the 9 <sup>th</sup> blast	117
Table 26: Data sheet of the 10 <sup>th</sup> blast	118

# **1. INTRODUCTION**

The Naintsch Mineralwerke, part of the Rio Tinto and Luzenac group extract at the Rabenwald mine about 100 000 t talc a year. To do that more than 2 million tonnes of overburden have to be removed. This is done by drilling and blasting. Talc is mined mechanically using a hydraulic digger.

In order to realise excellence programs, the Naintsch Mineralwerke are working to bring the drilling and blasting work to the highest possible level. In particular the drilling and blasting work should get more economic and safer.

Moreover Rio Tinto wants to create a reference model for surface drilling and blasting and even use the mine as a training centre for drilling and blasting work for the whole company group.

To achieve this target all necessary data to describe the state of the art in drilling and blasting were evaluated and a gap-analysis was conducted to find the economic and safety benefits of a change to the newest standards and techniques.

#### 1.1. THE DEPOSIT

The Rabenwald mine is located on a crest about 2.5 km in the south east of the Rabenwaldkogel at about 1100 m above sea level. It lies right on the boarder between the two political districts Weiz and Hartberg in eastern styria

The talc deposit is part of the sub-eastern-crystalline at the eastern edge of the Alps in a gneiss basement. It is spacious bonded to tectonic overfolded areas that are part of a big faulted zone. This tabular talc faulted zone dips with 5 to 7 degrees into a south and south-western direction and therefore most times parallel to the hills edge (Figure 1).



Figure 1: Longitudinal section through the talc deposit, Source [25]

The whole deposit covers an area of about 7.5 km<sup>2</sup>. The talc zone is between 20 and 50 m thick due to different thicknesses of the waste rock strata. The overburden is between a few meters thick where it reaches the surface and 100 to 150 m thick under elevations like the Krughofkogel (see Figure 1).

From the lithology the deposit consists of talc-chlorite-schist, leucophylite and a little bit of dolomite and magnesite. The waste rock stratas are paragneiss, othogneiss and granite-mica schist.

The surrounding rock is in large parts competent rock, where it is untouched. Exceptions are the axial and cross running faulted zones and the pre-damaged areas of the old underground mining operations.

# **2. PROJECT OVERVIEW**

The following will explain the goals of this thesis, the approach and the way it was realised. The thesis is divided into three parts:

The first part is the evaluation of the actual drill and blast work. These comprise:

- Planning of the drilling and blasting work
- Surveying of the wall
- Drilling
- Quality of the boreholes
- Detonators
- Way of initiation
- Blasting agent / column design
- Way of borehole charging
- Documentation of the blast and the blasting quality in terms of fragmentation
- Noise and vibrations

A precise explanation how the data was gathered is shown section 4.

The second part consists of the description of the latest technology in drilling and blasting. This was based on a literature survey.

Further on, in a third part, a gap analysis between the latest technology drilling and blasting and the actual work it is done. This Gap-Analysis comprised also an evaluation of the economical consequences and the safety risks of the gap found.

# 3. As-Is State

#### **3.1.** LAYOUT OF THE BLASTING WORK

At the moment the layout for a blast is defined by the driller and the pit deputy. They visit the blasting site together and define the blasting area. The driller decides about the actual position for each hole, using a wooden stick with self-made marks on it and sprays the position for each hole on the ground. The position of the boreholes is not surveyed nor are they marked in a map.

#### 3.2. SURVEYING OF THE WALL

In summer 2006 the Rabenwald mine bought the wall surveying system of the 3G Company. This system allows a photogrammetric surveying of the wall by making two pictures of the wall in a small distance from each other. A reference stick on the picture makes it possible to match the photo later with a scale. The provided computer software compares the two pictures and creates a 3D-image. Further more it is possible to insert boreholes to the 3D-picture, with previously defined burden and spacing, get the total blasted volume in cubic meter or tonnes, and read out the actual burden over the full length of each borehole.

During the data gathering, from August 2006 till the beginning of October 2006 the 3G - system has not been used at all nor was the wall surveyed with a theodolite. It was never recognised that the height of the wall was measured before the drilling process.

#### 3.3. DRILLING

In advance of the drilling process material that lies on the edge of the wall for safety reasons as a barricade is pushed down using a bulldozer. Then drilling is conducted with the tophammer drilling machine Atlas Copco F9. The driller drives from each marked top position for each hole to the next and drills the boreholes. Until the middle of September 2006 the holes where drilled with an inclination of 80 degrees then it was changed to 75 degrees. The actual length of each hole is defined by the driller from his experience. The orientation of the drill boom is done with the inclinometers mounted on the drill rig. The azimuth of the drill holes is visually estimated. Therefore the driller tries, if possible, to position the drill rig parallel to the wall and drills the holes.

#### **3.4. QUALITY OF THE BOREHOLES**

At the moment the Rabenwald mine does not measure the quality of the boreholes at all. The only thing that is done is that the driller lowers a plumb (piece of metal) to check if the holes are not blocked. Sometimes also a torch or a mirror is used.

#### 3.5. DETONATORS

The Rabenwald mine is using electric detonators with pyrotechnic delays for blasting. These Polex-detonators are highly insensitive (inner resistance: 0,09 Ohm). They are available in 21 steps including the momentum detonator (delay 0 ms) with 20 ms between each step. This means the delay times are: 0 ms, 20 ms, 40 ms, 60 ms.....400 ms.

#### **3.6. WAY OF INITIATION**

The blast is initiated from the top of the borehole using a detonating cord on which the detonator is attached on the sureface (Figure 2).



Figure 2: Direction of initiation of a blasthole

#### 3.7. BLASTIN AGENT / COLUMN DESIGN

The way the column is build currently is shown in Figure 2.

Firstly a detonating cord (20 g/m) is fixed on a cartridge, either gelatine or emulsion, and lowered into the borehole. After that another two cartridges follow, depending if the borehole is wet (emulsion) or dry (gelatine). The exact amount is not fixed and depends also on the availability of the explosive. If the hole is filled with water to the top, the whole column is charged with emulsion cartridges.

In dry boreholes, after three cartridges, the hole is charged with Anfo up to a height of 3.5 m from the collar. The rest of the hole is filled with stemming, typically drill cuttings.

On the outside of the hole the detonator is mounted on the detonating cord, using a plastic wrapping. If there is enough time, detonating cords too long are cut off and the part of the detonating cord outside the borehole is covered with drill cuttings.

All explosives are delivered by the Alpspreng-company. The exact specifications of the used explosives are:

Kind of explosive	Name	Length	Density	Diameter	Weight of one
		[ mm]	[g/cm <sup>3</sup> ]	[mm]	package [kg]
Gelatine (cartridged)	Supergel 30	600	1,4	65	2,5/cartridge
Emulsion (cartridged)	Emulgit 82GP	600	1,2	65	2,5/cartridge
Anfo (bulk)	Prillex 1	-	0,82	-	25/bag

Table 1: Specifications of used explosives

#### **3.8.** LOADING THE HOLES

By now the workmen drive with a truck to the blasting location. They unload their truck using



Figure 3: The blasters truck with the crane mounted to it

a crane that is mounted to the truck (Figure 3) and distribute the explosives to each borehole manually. This means carrying the 2.5 kg cartridges of gelatine and emulsion explosives and the 25 kg bags of Anfo explosives.

#### 3.9. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLAST

The blast is documented according to the "Sprengarbeitenverordnung", which is the Austrian regulatory framework for blasting operations. This means the operator of the drilling machine has to record how many holes he has drilled and to which depth and the shot-firer has to draw a plan containing the position of each hole and the amount of explosive it is charged with. This documentation can be seen in Figure 4 (record of the drill operator) and Figure 5 & 6 (record of the shot-firer). All the other records of the blasts analysed in the frame of this study are attached in Appendix A. There is no shot-firer's plan from the 6<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> blast. From the 10<sup>th</sup> blast no data is available at all.

Ges.m.b.H Rabenwald Anger/Stm	I. Werk d A - 8184 lk	30.08.06	Bohrprotok	oll für die Sp	rengung Nr.	Betriebsstunden	Fahrz./min.
Datum:	29.8.06	]Dieselstart/	Uhrzeit	0630	Schichtbeginn	5990	30 mm
Revier:	Reithofer	Dieselstopp	/Uhrzeit	1400	Schichtende	5897	
Etage:	7090	Bohrkrone I	Nr. / Ø;	102	]	[	
		Bohrist:		Ablater			
	Bohrgeom	etrie:	Wandhöhe	H:	10 m	]Lochabstand:	3,7
29.8. A 16	30 - 59	97	Bohrlochne	igung α :	80°	Vorgabe:	3,5
E20	30-600	01	Bohrlochtie (inkl. Unterl	fe T: pohren)	10 -		
			a (davida en la terratera) Generativa	Bohr	meter	Gebirae bzw. A	nmerkuna
<sup>∼</sup> atum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengb	efugten
27. 9.06	1-2				8-	hither -	Hert
	3-20	3,5	3,7		70m	~ 6~	
				-1			
ohrmeter na	achbohren	2 X mb	15m pl	en Irall Tral			
Summe.				- Silven and the second		ite di di di secondo se secondo se secondo se secondo se secondo se se secondo se s	
17	1						
				_	(	Bohrzeit/brutto)	- 2
				Summe Bohri	meter f. Bergb	auplan	

Figure 4: Drill operator's record of the 1<sup>st</sup> blast, Source [27]

Spre Ø Wa Bohr Spre Uhrze	 ngort: . ndhöhe lochneig ngung: a eit:	I I E F 	BOHRL Hofy 200 30.08.200 45 BOHR-	0 C H S P G B 0 C V 0 C V S 1 S	R E N G U ebirge: ohrlochdur erantwortl orengbefug JND Z Ü N	NG Nr.: ////// cchmesser: . icher Leites ter: .////6 D P L A N:	el-Hent 102 bzw. linburn 1	mm Aught
Bohr- loch	Loch- abstd.	Vor- gabe	Teufe	Sprengst Sprengsta	toffmenge offsorte	in kg Gesamt-	Besatz	Zünder:
Nr.:	m	m				menge	ш	1-18
1	3.7m	3, Sin	Sim					Store
_2			C 2131	Philler !	544	ASSUR		
3	-		40	10	10/1	8		
5			10m	Supergel :	80	200 kg		
6			<u> </u>			0	1	
7								
8				1 = 8	Boil	2- 220	R. D.I	A D
9				- 00	21	- acov m	ans Maiti	10-p
10				1000				
11			20220	Umor :	4,35	mm/3 ic	L Sur	en una la
12						10000122 (2)	an.	SI COURT -
13							4	
14				UB=	1,86			
15							(	
17		-		1000 C				
18								
19								
20								
Sa.		-		1				
ß	and a							
Spreng	Sohllöch Fächerlö Istoff -	er: T cher:T Zusam	iefe: iefe: menstellung:	····.m	Sprengsto	ff: GD1 GD1 ANC - Ante	kg ANC kg ANC pil:	kg kg
Ger.Do Rowoli	t) 45/ 30/	700 350 350	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	kg kg	Kopfl Sonst insge	öcher ige-Löcher samt	·····	·····%
Lambri (Rowol	30/ t lo an)	se		kg	_Zündmi Det. Z Zünder Haufwe Spez.S	ttel: Undschnur (Type). <i>dv</i> rk: <i>.44B.</i> <b>1</b> prengstoffve		m st. ?2t !38g/t
0		-			Bemerk	ungen:		

Figure 5: Shot-firer's record of the 1<sup>st</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 6: Shot-firer's plan of the 1<sup>st</sup> blast, Source [27]

#### 3.10. DOCUMENTATION / MEASURING THE BLASTING RESULT

At the moment there is no written documentation of the blasting result nor is it measured. The shot-firer just walks back to the blasting area and has a look at the result to make sure all holes detonated successfully.

#### 3.11. NOISE AND VIBRATION – NEIGHBOURS

The company owns two vibration measurement systems (the Minimate Plus W/ext.Geo and the S3 Std Triaxial-Geophone, both from the Instantel company) which are regularly in use. An example of a vibration measurement event report is shown is Figure 7. All the other event reports are shown in Appendix B. There are no such reports from the 2<sup>nd</sup>, 3<sup>rd</sup>, 6<sup>th</sup>, 9<sup>th</sup> and 10<sup>th</sup> blast. To my extent of knowledge noise is not measured.

One neighbour who is within the 300 m safety radius of the blasts most times has to be contacted by telephone and fax about the actual blasting time. All other neighbours know that the official blasting times are between ten o'clock am and two o'clock pm every day.

#### 3.12. CLEARING OF THE BLASTING AREA

The Austrian law says that every blasting area has to be cleared within a radius of 300 m. During a blast all streets to the pit are secured by a truck, the pit deputy or workmen, who are all equipped with walkie talkies, to be able to stop the blast in case of an unexpected situation. The positions for all people who close streets in case of blasts are always the same; the exact positions of the 300 m safety radius are not read out anew every blast nor are they marked in a plan.



Figure 7: Blast vibrations event report of the 1<sup>st</sup> blast, Source [27]

# 4. TAKEN MEASUREMENTS AND DATA GATHERED

Table 2 shows an overview of blasts analysed in the frame of this study, of data gathered and when it was measured.

Table 2: Overview of the gathered data

			parameters registered						
	date of blast	3G wall surveying	Surveying of the holes with theodolite	borehole deviation measurement	charging documentation	vibration measurement	noise measurement	photos of blast	
blast 1	30.08.2006			(x)	х	х	х	х	
blast 2	01.09.2006			(x)	х	х	х	х	
blast 3	05.09.2006		х	(x)	х	х	х	х	
blast 4	07.09.2006	х	х	(x)	х	X value from company	х	х	
blast 5	09.09.2006	х	х	(x)	x	X value from company	x		
blast 6	15.09.2006		х	(x)	х	х	x	х	
blast 7	19.09.2006	х	х	(x)	х		х	х	
blast 8	26.09.2006		х	х	х	х	х		
blast 9	28.09.2006	х	х	х	х	х	х		
blast 10	05.10.2006		х	х	x		х		

(x)....values were measured but can not be used because of wrong calibrated measurement device

#### 4.1. SURVEYING WITH THE THEODOLITE

The following two figures (Figure 8 & 9) show a typical example of a surveyed blasting plan. All other plans of surveyed holes are attached in Appendix C. The lines between the red cycles show the edge of the wall, the green cycles are the drilled boreholes.



Figure 8: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole starting points from the 10<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 9: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole staring points from the 9<sup>th</sup> blast

In order to measure the borehole starting points the theodolite was positioned on a place with known coordinates. Then a mirror was positioned over each hole and the distance to the mirror as well as the vertical and horizontal angle measured. From that the position for each hole could be calculated.

#### 4.2. SURVEYING OF THE WALL WITH THE 3G-SYSTEM

During the data gathering for the 3G-system two problems occurred, which made it often impossible to get a good picture of the blasted walls. Sometimes the wall or parts of it were not visible because of pushed off muck (Figure 12) on the toe of the wall or the wall was not scaled off at all. Another time is was just not possible to see the wall because of too big distances between the wall and the possible photo position or there was no accessible bench in front of the wall to make a photo. Even though some photos created useful results. These can be seen in Figure 10 to 13. All the other pictures of surveyed walls are shown in Appendix D.



Figure 10: 3G-front-picture from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 11: 3G-side-picture from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 12: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 13: Plan view of the wall from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast

#### 4.3. QUALITY OF THE BOREHOLES

For measuring the deviation of the boreholes the Boretrack system of MDL was used. Therefore a measurement rod was lowered in the holes and re-raised in 1 m increments. Each meter the deviation from the vertical is measured and the value saved. Software then connects these points and displays the actual run of the hole and the position compared to the other holes as well as the intended direction.

Unfortunately only 3 of the 10 blasts can be used, because the compass of the measurement rod was not calibrated correctly. Nevertheless it can be said that the holes from the first blasts were really bad. One was not even able to see to the bottom of the holes with a torch that was lowered into every hole. For 75 % of the holes the light vanished before the depth of 7 m, which is already an information about the poor quality of the holes. This circumstance changed after the first presentation on gathered data at the company and the holes got quite better. This can be seen from the comparison of blast 6 to blast 7 in Table 3.

Table 5: Col	nparison of vanishin	g lights from the o a	nu / Diast
6th b	last	7th b	last
Number of	Light vanishing	Number of	Light vanishing
Borehole	[m]	Borehole	[m]
14	3	38	7,3
39	3,4	7	7,8
13	3,7	21	8,4
40	4	39	8,4
36	4,2	32	9,3
5	4,5	10	10,3
12	4,6	33	10,6
8	5	36	10,7
19	5,1	8	10,8
21	5,1	9	10,8
34	5,3	29	10,9
42	5,4	37	11
4	5,5	41	11,4
41	5,5	5	11,5
3	5,6	27	11,5
30	6,3	6	11,6
17	6,4	14	11,6
22	6,4	22	11,6
35	6,4	40	11,6
38	6,5	1	11,7
25	6,6	18	11,7
33	6,6	24	11,7
2	6,7	30	11,7
31	6,7	13	11,8
32	6,7	17	11,9
24	6,8	42	11,9
37	6,8	3	12
1	6,9	11	12

Table 3: Comparison of vanishing lights from the 6<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> blast

6	6,9	16	12
23	7	25	12
27	7	15	12,1
44	7	26	12,2
43	7,1	20	12,3
10	7,2	2	visible till bottom
16	7,2	4	visible till bottom
20	7,3	12	visible till bottom
7	7,4	19	visible till bottom
11	7,6	23	visible till bottom
9	7,7	28	visible till bottom
15	7,7	31	visible till bottom
28	7,7	34	visible till bottom
26	8,2	35	visible till bottom
29	8,5	43	visible till bottom
18	9,3		

After that the quality of the holes remained better, which was underlined by the Boretrack measurements. The lowering of the torch was not done again because of lack of time.

The evaluated borehole deviations are shown in Figure 14 to 17. The red lines show the intended direction of the holes, the green lines are the actual location.



Figure 14: Borehole deviation display from the 8<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 15: Front view of the boreholes from the 8<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 16: Borehole deviation display for the 9<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 17: Borehole deviation display from the 10<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 18: Detailed display of hole number 3 from the 9<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 19: Detailed display of hole number 9 from the 9<sup>th</sup> blast

Figure 18 and 19 also show the differences of borehole quality within one drilled blast, whereas hole three in Figure 18 is nearly ideal, hole 9 in Figure 19 deviates more than 1 m from it's planned position. Table 4 shows and overview of the measured borehole deviation in relation to the planed end position.

Blast 8	Blast 9				
Hole number	Deviation [m]	Hole number	Deviation [m]	Hole number	Deviation [m]
1	0,89	1	1	1	0,61
2	0,85	2	0,79	2	0,74
3	0,79	3	0,27	3	0,35
4	0,95	4	0,32	4	0,83
5	0,95	5	0,97	5	0,54
6	0,68	6	0,47	6	0,41
7	0,61	7	0,43	7	not measured
8	0,84	8	0,32	8	0,96
9	0,32	9	1,95	9	0,48
10	0,74	10	0,85	10	0,41
11	1,11	11	0,46	11	0,5
12	0,98	12	1,08	12	0,76
13	0,4	13	0,33	13	0,42
14	0,92	14	0,32	14	0,55
15	1,06	15	1,29	15	not measured
16	0,7	16	0,54	16	0,33
17	0,95	17	0,8	17	0,87
18	1,15	18	1,18	18	0,76
19	1,17	19	1,13	19	0,61
20	0,22	20	1,51	20	0,11
21	0,51	21	0,47	21	0,31
22	0,16	22	0,24	22	0,71
23	0,53	23	0,42	23	0,63
24	0,31	24	1,14	24	0,74
25	0,1	25	0,37	25	0,84
26	1,44	26	0,57	26	0,56
27	1,95	27	0,67	27	0,92
28	1,34	28	0,67	28	0,27
29	1,85			29	0,39
30	1,96			30	0,43
31	2,19			31	0,5
32	2,17			32	1,03
33	1,84			33	0,34
34	0,88			34	1,32
35	1,24			35	0,62
36	1,65			36	0,65
37	1,74				
38	2,25				
39	2,14				
40	0,95				
41	0,73				
42	0,8				
43	2,31				
44	2,42				

 Table 4: Overview of borehole deviations

### 4.4. DOCUMENTATION OF CHARGING

The charging process of the holes was documented completely. Table 5 shows an example of documentation. All other documentation sheets are in Appendix E.

 Table 5: Data sheet of the 1<sup>st</sup> blast

# Blast date 30.08.2006 (13:45) Bench: 1060

			Charge	1	Stemming			
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Hight	Kind	Notes	
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)			
1	3	1,5		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
2	3	1		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
3	2	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
4	2	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
5	1	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
6	1	3		3,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
7	7	2		0,5	3,3	drill cuttings		
8	6	2		0,5	4	drill cuttings		
9	6	1,5		1,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
10	5	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
11	5	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
12	4	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
13	4	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
14	10	2		1	3	drill cuttings		
15	10	1		0,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
16	9	3		3	3,5	drill cuttings		
17	9	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
18	8	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
19	8	3		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
20	7	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
21	14	2		0,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
22	13	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
23	13	2		0,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
24	12	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
25	12	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
26	11	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
27	11	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
28	18	2		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
29	17	2		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
30	17	2		0,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
31	16	1		0,75	3	drill cuttings		
32	16	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	1	
33	15	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
34	15	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
35	14	3		1,25	3,5	drill cuttings		

#### 4.5. **VIBRATION MEASUREMENT**

Vibrations were measured using the VIBRAS-system of Walesch Elektronik together with up to four geophones. Measurements were conducted once at the house of Mr. Stoppacher, about 500 m away from the blast and all the other times on the next neighbour's property, around 200 m away from the blast. The first measurement at Mr. Stoppacher's house gave no results at the trigger level of 1 mm/s. All other measurements at Mr. Reithofer's house were undertaken at a trigger level of 0.1 mm/s.

Figure 20 shows a map of the mine and the houses of Mr. Stoppacher and Mr. Reithofer.



Figure 20: Map of the Rabenwald mine showing the blasting areas and the neighbours Reithofer and Stoppacher, Source [26]

Table 6: Measured vibration velocities				
Distance [m]	Vibration velocities [mm/s]			
370	2,54			
330	6,07			
280	4,7			
240	2,22			
230	9,41			
220	8,94			
220	2,35			
220	4,23			
220	4,31			
220	4,11			
200	4,69			
180	16,05			
180	11,56			
180	6,47			
130	6,07			
80	30,58			
80	8,03			

Table 6 shows a summary of the measured vibration velocities.

The vibration velocity and the frequency that where measured right at the next neighbour's house are shown in Figure 21.



Figure 21: A DIN 4150 diagram showing the vibration velocity versus frequency

The DIN 4150 diagram is divided into 3 classifications of buildings (line 1 to 3). Values below line 1 represent industrial buildings, values below line 2 represent residential buildings and values below line 3 represent buildings that are listed.

The company's goal is to stay below line 3 whenever possible and this goal is reached for 71 % of the blasts.

#### 4.6. NOISE MEASUREMENTS



Noise measurements were conducted with the Norsonic Sound Level Meter. The results are shown in Figure 22.

Figure 22: Results from noise measurements

The value from the 1<sup>st</sup> blast was taken at Mr. Stoppacher's house about 500 m from the blast. The values from the 5<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> blast were taken inside the mine about 150 m away from the blast with detonating chords hanging out of boulders that were also fired.

### **5. ANALYSIS OF DATA MEASURED**

#### 5.1. ANALYSIS OF BLAST GEOMETRY

#### 5.1.1. BURDEN AND SPACING

From the measured positions for all boreholes the actual drilled burdens and spacings were calculated for the borehole staring points. The spacing is the distance from each borehole to the next hole; the burden is the distance from the borehole to the next drillhole row. This is shown in Figure 23.



Figure 23: Explanation of spacing S and burden B

From the documented ten blasts eight were surveyed with the theodolite. Then burdens and spacings were calculated by summarizing all values and building an average. The calculated average burdens and spacings are shown in Table 7 and Figure 24.

	spacing	burden
blast 3	3,28	3,55
blast 4	3,19	3,35
blast 5	2,73	3,57
blast 6	3,44	3,40
blast 7	3,39	2,55
blast 8	3,60	3,24
blast 9	4,94	3,15
blast 10	3,69	3,04

Table 7:	Summary	of average	burdens	and	spacings
----------	---------	------------	---------	-----	----------


Figure 24: Average burdens and spacings from the eight surveyed blasts

As can be seen the values vary a lot between the different blasts, spacings from 2.7 m to 4.9 m and burdens from 2.5 m to 3.6 m. Moreover there is no regularity (e.g.: the burden is always bigger than the spacing) visible in the blast geometry. In order to demonstrate these variations even better Figure 25 shows the variation between the biggest and the smallest burdens and spacings for eight surveyed blasts.



Figure 25: Difference between smallest and biggest burdens and spacings for the eight surveyed blasts

#### 5.1.2. POWDER FACTOR

The powder factor is defined by the amount of explosives per cubic meter or tonne blast material. The allocated amount of material is derived from multiplying the average burden and spacing with the hole length (derived from borehole deviation measurement). The amount of explosives was documented during the charging of the holes.

Tl	he average	powder	factors	are disr	played i	in Tabl	e 8 and	Figure	26.
								0	

Table 8: Average powder factors				
	Powderfactor			
	g/m³	g/t		
blast 3	384,1	147,7		
blast 4	401,9	154,6		
blast 5	495,0	190,4		
blast 6	395,4	152,1		
blast 7	492,9	189,6		
blast 8	341,7	131,4		
blast 9	376,3	144,7		
blast 10	374,8	144,2		



Figure 26: Average powder factors for blast 3 to blast 10

Besides blast five and blast seven, powder factors range around 150 g/t, calculated with an average rock density of 2.6 g/cm<sup>3</sup>. On closer inspection of the powder factors per hole, one might find that the variation between holes is quite big, which is a consequence of the variation of burdens and spacings. This is shown is Figure 27 and 28.



Figure 27: Changing powder factors per hole for blast 9



Figure 28: Changing powder factors per hole for blast 10

# 5.2. POSITIONING OF THE DRILL RIG

As was stated before the orientation of the drill boom is done with the inclinometers mounted on the drill rig. The azimuth of the drillholes is visually estimated. Therefore the drill operator tries if possible to position the drill rig parallel to the wall. This may have the effect that not all holes have the same direction of dipping. A slight turn of the drillrig for only a few degrees may therefore result in big deviations of the end position of the hole. This effect is displayed in Figure 29.



Figure 29: Borehole direction resulting from slight turns of drillrig

# 5.3. WALL SURVEYING WITH 3G SYSTEM

The wall surveying with the 3G system shows beside the problems of using the system which were already discussed in chapter 4.2, that the walls are quite different. A summary of derived data from the 3G-system is shown in Table 9.

	Calculated dipping	Dipping	Lenght of h	oles [m]
Blast number	(includes material in front of the wall)	(without material in front of the wall)	calculated with 3G software	average drilled length
4	45,92°	70°- 75°	8,90	10
5	23,16°	75°	10,9-11,7	12
7 (1)*	54,36°	60°- 65°	8,7-10	12,2
7 (2)*	41,13°	45°	9,9-10,2	12,2
9	26,46°	30°	10,5-8,6	11,7
10	60,32°	65°- 70°	9,2-10	11,2

Table 9: Summary of derived data from 3G-system

\*...Wall was surveyed from two sides

The material that lies on the toe of the wall results in very big burdens and therefore a high confinement of the hole in the bottom. That's why the calculated dipping is always very flat and it would be much steeper without the material. Nevertheless even the dipping without the material is not always the same as the borehole dipping, just because most times the digger defines the wall angle and not the inclination of the blast holes from the previous blast. In blast 7 (2) and blast 9 the dipping without the material could not be derived because the material was lying from the toe up to the edge of the wall.

Another aspect is that the boreholes are drilled too long. This is shown in Figure 30.



Figure 30: Example of a too long drilled borehole from the 10<sup>th</sup> blast

The 3G-software that comes with the 3G-system is also able to calculate volumes and tonnes that have to be blasted by each borehole. Unfortunately this information can not be used here because of the irregular blast patterns and material that is lying on the toe of the wall. Until now one is not able to put blastholes on free chosen positions. Moreover the blastholes can only be lined up in a row between the two marks that define the limits of the picture and further more only complete rows (it is not possible to delete individual boreholes) can be realised. As can be seen from the surveyed boreholes these ideal situations never existed.

## 5.4. QUALITY OF THE BOREHOLE

Although the values from the first seven deviation measurements can not be used because the compass of the rod was calibrated wrong, it can be said that the quality of the boreholes was really bad. This is underlined by the calculated values from the experiment with the torch that was lowered into the boreholes. In the 6<sup>th</sup> blast the light of the torch vanished in 72 % of the holes before the depth of 7 meters and none of them could be seen till the bottom.

It was already stated that this effect suddenly changed after the  $6^{th}$  blast. In the  $7^{th}$  blast already 23 % of the holes could be seen till the bottom and none vanished before a depth of 7 meters.

The deviation measurement with the Boretrack system shows that the deviations of the drilled holes are quite big. A summary of the measured deviations is shown is Table 10.

It should be noted that only 30 % of the holes are less than 0,5 m away from their planned position. More than 43 % deviate between 0,5 m and 1 m and even 27 % deviate between 1 m and 2,5 m.

Deviation	Percentage
< 0,5 m	30,20%
0,5 - 1 m	43,40%
1 - 1,5 m	13,20%
1,5 - 2 m	7,50%
2 - 2,5 m	5,70%
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

#### Table 10: Summary of measured borehole deviations

## 5.5. ANALYSIS OF VIBRATION MEASUREMENTS

The measured ground vibrations are at a quite acceptable level. Even the predictions for ground vibrations match very well with the real measured values.

To calculate these predicted ground vibrations the prediction formula of Lüdeling/Hinzen (1986) for sedimentary rock (which is also used by the company) was used:

$$v_{max} = 969 * L^{0.6} * D^{-1.5}$$

where  $v_{max}$  = the maximum oscillation vibration (mm/s),

L = maximum explosive charge fired instantaneously (kg) and

D = distance from the blast (m)

The values for "the maximum explosive charge fired instantaneously" were taken from the borehole charging documentation. The measured and predicted values for all blasts are displayed in Figure 31.



Figure 31: Measured and predicted vibration velocities



Figure 32: Correlation of predicted and measured vibration velocities

As can be seen the measured and predicted values correlate quite well, the differences can be explained with irregularities of the rock mass that can not be foreseen.

To be able to predict the vibrations better a "log maximum velocities/log scaled distance" diagram was prepared (Figure 33).



Figure 33: Log maximum vibrations versus log scaled distance diagram

The red line shows the trendline of measured data points, the blue line shows the trendline after the prediction formula of Lüdeling/Hinzen. This diagram is a good instrument to predict vibrations if it is fed with enough data points, because it reflects the unique geology of the mine, that no prediction formula can capture.

# 5.6. ANALYSIS OF NOISE MEASUREMENTS

Beside the values of blast 5 and 7 which were taken inside the mine just 150 m away from the blast where detonating cords were hanging out of boulders, all values stay constant below 100 dB(A), which is an acceptable magnitude for noise from a blast. The threshold of noise pain is about 120 dB(A).

# 6. DEVIATIONS BETWEEN PLANNED AND MONITORED DATA

This part of the thesis shows a comparison between documented data by the company and actually monitored data. The documented data from the company was taken from the drill operator's records and the shot-firer's records as well as from the vibration velocities event report.

# 6.1. BOREHOLE SPECIFICATIONS

Table 11 shows a comparison of measured, calculated and from the drill operator recorded borehole specifications.

	Borehole		Length of holes				ators record
Blast number	[degrees]	minimum drilled length [m]	maximum drilled length [m]	average drilled length [m]	calculated with 3G software [m]	minimum drilled length [m]	maximum drilled length [m]
blast 1	80°	5	11	9,1	-	5	10
blast 2	80°	9,5	12,8	11,8	-	3	12
blast 3	80°	8	14	11,96	-	8	12
blast 4	80°	9,2	10,5	10	8,90	10,5	10,5
blast 5	80°	9,9	13,5	12	10,9-11,7	12	12
blast 6	75°	10,2	13,7	11,7	-	11	12
blast 7	75°	11,3	12,8	12,2	7,7-10,2	12	12
blast 8	75°	6,1	14	10,3	-	6	12
blast 9	75°	8,2	12,3	11,7	8,6-10,5	12	12
blast 10	75°	6,1	12,8	11,2	9,2-10	no records available	no records available

Table 11: Comparison of measured, calculated and drill operators records of borehole specifications

Values between measured, from the 3G-software calculated and by the drill operator recorded borehole lengths vary a lot. The reasons for shorter measured than actually drilled holes may be that material fell into the hole after the drilling process. Longer holes measured than recorded may have the reason that the drill operator wanted to make sure that the hole is long enough , so he drilled a little bit more. Nevertheless at this point it should be stated again that it is very important to know the desired borehole length, because in all blasts where the 3G-software was used the holes were drilled too long.

# 6.2. BLASTING PATTERN

The differences between recorded and actually drilled burdens and spacings are shown in Table 12 and Figure 34 and 35.

	planned valu	e (company)	monitored values	
blast	h d a		he surd a se	
number	burden	spacing	burden	spacing
			not	not
blast 1	3,5	3,7	measured	measured
			not	not
blast 2	3,5	4	measured	measured
blast 3	3,5	3,8	3,28	3,55
blast 4	3,5	3,8	3,19	3,35
blast 5	3,5	3,8	2,73	3,57
blast 6	3,5	3,8	3,44	3,40
blast 7	3,2	3,4	3,39	2,55
blast 8	3,4	3,8	3,60	3,24
blast 9	3,4	3,6	4,94	3,15
	not	not		
blast 10	measured	measured	3,69	3,04

Table 12: Comparison of recorded and measured burdens and spacing



Figure 34: Comparison of recorded and measured burdens



Figure 35: Comparison of recorded and measured spacings

Beside the burdens in blast 7, 8 and 9 the recorded values are higher than the actually drilled values. This effect can also be seen in the blasted area that belongs to each borehole, which is calculated by multiplying the burden and the spacing for every blast (Table 13 and Figure 36).

	planned valu	e (company)	monitored values	
blast	h sets s		h sta	
number	burden	spacing	burden	spacing
			not	not
blast 1	3,5	3,7	measured	measured
			not	not
blast 2	3,5	4	measured	measured
blast 3	3,5	3,8	3,28	3,55
blast 4	3,5	3,8	3,19	3,35
blast 5	3,5	3,8	2,73	3,57
blast 6	3,5	3,8	3,44	3,40
blast 7	3,2	3,4	3,39	2,55
blast 8	3,4	3,8	3,60	3,24
blast 9	3,4	3,6	4,94	3,15
blast 10	not measured	not measured	3,69	3,04

Table 13: Comparison of recorded and monitored average blasted area per hole



Figure 36: Comparison of recorded and monitored average blasted area per hole

Only in blast 9 the monitored value is actually bigger than the recorded value. In all other blasts the difference between the recorded and actually monitored area lies between 1,3 m<sup>2</sup> (blast 8) and 3,6 m<sup>2</sup> (blast 5) per hole.

These values can be explained by many factors:

- Because of irregularities of the wall, additional holes have to be drilled in front of the first row, to make sure the material gets blasted, which reduces burden for this special area;
- If suddenly the driller reaches a talc-zone, these holes don't get charged in order to avoid mixing talc and waste material, which of course increases the spacing for the neighbouring holes;
- In five of the ten documented blasts, the holes were drilled parallel to the wall, whereas the shot-firer turned the direction of blast with the delay time of the detonators by 45°, which of course changes the actual effective burdens and spacings. Figure 37 and 38 show this effect for better understanding.



Figure 37: Intended direction where muck should be thrown



Figure 38: Direction where the muck was actually thrown by changing the ignition sequence (delay numbers shown)

An effect that results from this change of ignition sequence is that the powder factor and the energy per borehole sometimes differs significantly, as the side spacings get very big and the burdens very small (Figure 39 & 40).



Figure 39: Different powder factors before and after the change of ignition sequence for blast 9



Figure 40: Different energy/borehole before and after the change of ignition sequence for blast 9

Nevertheless the change of ignition sequence had probably no effect on the blast result, because the explosive anyway was not distributed more regularly on the holes before the change of ignition sequence. If the blasting pattern was drilled more precise, this change could have influenced the blast strongly, even in disadvantageous way, by producing a lot of fines on one hand and a lot of boulders on the other hand.

# 6.3. POWDER FACTOR

The analysis of the shot-firer records concerning the powder factor showed that he calculated the powder factor with an average rock density of 2,5 g/cm<sup>3</sup>. Therefore in the following Table 14 and Figure 41 the planned powder factor [g/t] is also calculated with 2,6 g/t like in all other calculations of the thesis.

	planned value	monitored value	
blast number	[g/t]	[g/t]	
blast 3	not calculated	147,7	
blast 4	127,9	154,6	
blast 5	138,5	190,4	
blast 6	not calculated	152,1	
blast 7	147,1	189,6	
blast 8	130,8	131,4	
blast 9	not calculated	144,7	
blast 10	not calculated	144,2	

Table 14: Comparison from the shot-firer's and the monitored powder factor



Figure 41: Comparison of recorded and planned powder factors

For blast 3, blast 6, blast 9 and blast 10 no records are available.

Only 2 values of the monitored powder factors are quite high, ranging around 190 g/t, all others are around 150 g/t which is the desired value from the company. The shot-firer's record show a lower powder factor, probably because he calculated with the documented burdens and spacings from the drill operator, which, as was already seen, do not always correspond with reality.

# 6.4. MASS OF EXPLOSIVES

It was also tried to compare the recorded column design as the shot-firer sketched it on his drawing of the blast to the actual monitored one. This was done for blast 8 and 9. In blast 8 the shot-firer's record says the holes were charged with 4 cartridges of gelatine explosives, 3,7 stemming and the rest anfo. The amount of explosive that would fit into such a hole is compared to the actual charging in Figure 42.



Figure 42: Comparison of mass explosive recorded and charged for blast 8

The same was done for blast 9, where the shot-firer's record says the holes were charged with 4 cartridges emulsion explosives, 3,6 m stemming and the rest with anfo. In Figure 43 the



Figure 43: Comparison of mass explosive recorded and charged for blast 9

amount of explosive that would fit in such a hole is again compared to the actual charging. To be able to compare this two situations better special holes in blast 9 that were very short, were taken out.

Most times the mass of explosives charged is higher than the mass of explosives recorded by the shot-firer. One reason for that is that the amount of explosive per hole is regulated from the shot-firer's experience. The sketch of the charge the shot-firer is drawing is only a very imprecise one, that's why his values of mass of explosives per meter do not vary that much. His sketch just shows the charge of one hole to represent between 30 and 40 holes.

## 6.5. VIBRATIONS

Table 15 and Figure 44 show a comparison of the company's precalculated vibration values, my own precalculated values and the actual measured ones.

Table 15. Comparison of vibration values				
	precalculated values (company)	precalculated values	measured values	
blast number	[mm/s]	[mm/s]	[mm/s]	
blast 1	4,35*	1,73*	<1*	
blast 2	4,10	6,09	2,22	
blast 3	4,90	6,93	8,94	
blast 4	2,30	5,32	2,35	
blast 5	3,74	5,44	4,23	
blast 6	4,25	7,37	4,41	
blast 7	7,00	7,24	2,1	
blast 8	6,35	3,52	2,54	
blast 9	3,77	6,86	4,11	
blast 10	not available	6,36	-	

Table 15: Comparison of vibration values

\* values for different measuring locations, therefore no comparison possible

\*\* values from company's measuring device



Figure 44: Comparison of vibration values

Except blast 8 the company's precalculated vibration values are always lower than my values. This is because the company precalculates the vibration values with an average amount of explosives per delay time, whereas I precalculated the values for the maximum instantaneous charge per delay, because I knew from my documentation exactly the amount of explosive for every hole, whereas the shot-firer just divides the total amount of explosive by the number of holes blasted that got the same delay.

Nevertheless all my precalculated values except one are higher than the actual measured ones, which is an advantage, because it always creates a safety pillow.

# 7. THE STATE OF THE ART IN DRILLING AND BLASTING

## 7.1. PLANNING A BLAST

The modern way to design a blast is a computerized blast design. But it should not be forgotten, that for the state of the art of planning a blast much more than a computer-software is needed to do the work properly. Quite a number of aspects like geology, burden and spacing, used explosive, initiation-system, initiation sequence and many more have to be taken care of. Therefore it is advisable to build up an own management system for the process "drilling and blasting". Here all experiences and collected data can be stored and new findings can be added. Especially in the drilling and blasting design, which is normally done by young engineers, who's area of responsibility change often and who might do the job for just a few years, a lot of information is lost through the job fluctuation.

#### 7.1.1. REVIEW ON THE PLANNING PROCESS OF THE BLAST

A blast design should be done by a person with sufficient engineering knowledge about blasting. Surely the driller who by now decides where each blast hole is drilled, has collected a lot of knowledge through his working years, but won't have the same overview as a well trained engineer. No two blasts are the same, so accordingly no two blasts can be drilled in the same way.

It should be also said that someone who designs the blast with a database in his background has access to much more helpful information that can influence the design and where to place the holes. After the planning process the engineer can review the design, maybe get a second opinion on his first plan and then redo the whole process again. The driller who drills his hole will probably not think about the position of the hole again after it is drilled, but will proceed to drill the next hole.

## 7.2. SURVEYING OF THE WALL

Nowadays two systems of surveying the wall are available. The first one is the laser scanner, who creates a very detailed picture of the wall, but has some disadvantages. The investment costs are very high, the scanning of the wall is very time consuming and it creates an enormous amount of data that has to be stored somewhere.

Secondly there is the photogrammetry, like the system from the 3G-company. It is very flexible, fast to use and sufficiently accurate and has the big advantage, compared to the laser scanner, that it shows colours, which is a really helpful instrument for interpreting possible risky parts in the wall.

#### 7.2.1. REVIEW ON THE ACTUAL PROCESS OF SURVEYING THE WALL

The already available 3G-system was still in the introduction phase of the operating procedure at the quarry when the data gathering was conducted and therefore not used as much as possible. A more intensive use would have shown that

- Firstly: at some walls where the toe of the wall was not cleared off, the burden of the lower parts of the hole show an enormous burden of more than eight meters (Figure 12) and
- Secondly: In many cases the drilled length is much higher than actually necessary. An example for this excessive length drilling is shown in Figure 29 where the drilled length is 12 m whereas only 9.2 m are necessary.

The following two calculations in Table 16 show the possible drill length savings for one month:

Case 1:	holes are on average 2 m too long	
	number of holes	holes are on average 10 m long
Blast 1	35	
Blast 2	45	
Blast 3	31	
Blast 4	45	
Blast 5	37	
Blast 6	44	
Blast 7	47	
Blast 8	64	
Blast 9	28	
Blast 10	44	
		possible drill meter savings for one
	100	month
Sum	420	840
	ld have drilled another 84 holes	
more	id have drifted another 64 holes	
Case 2:	holes are on average 1.5 m too long	
		possible drill meter savings for one
		month
		630
=> one cou more	ld have drilled another 63 holes	

Table 16: Two examples for a possible drill length saving

Table 16 shows that in case 1 another 84 hole could have been drilled, which is about the amount of holes for another two blasts. This means a saving of about 20 % in drilling lengths and costs.

# 7.3. DRILLING

From a technical point of view there are 2 systems available: Tophammer drilling machines and Down the Hole Hammer drilling machines. Which one to use is most times a matter of the length of the drill hole, which is shown in Figure 45.



Figure 45: Difference between DTH-hammer and tophammer in relation to the penetration rate

As can be seen tophammer machines are mostly used up to drilling lengths of 15 to 20 meters. For longer holes it is advisable to use Down the Hole (DTH) hammer machines, because of their higher penetration rate. Another aspect distinguishes the two systems. Because of the physical size of the DTH Hammer, hole diameters start here at about 90 mm and go up to 200 mm, whereas Tophammers start at 35 mm and end at 127 mm.

#### 7.3.1. SMART RIG SYSTEM

The newest achievement in automation of surface crawlers is the SmartRig System, developed by Atlas Copco (Figure 47). It is characterised by the following new specifications:

- SmartRig control system
- The AutoRAS (automatic rod adding systems)
- ROC Manager and MWD (Measure While Drilling)
- GPS Navigation
- Silenced Version for urban areas

The SmartRig control system uses electrical signals to control the hydraulic valves. This reduces the number of hydraulic components by 30 % compared to normal Hydraulic Control Systems (HCS) and the noise level for the operator. All control gauges are replaced by a display unit which results in more space in the cab and increases visibility for the operator. This Control System includes an anti jamming function which reduces wear of material and prolongs service intervals. Further more it comes with a laser plane as a reference height to make sure all hole are drilled to the same depth and an automatic feed positioning to set up the boom to predefines angles with just one button.

The AutoRAS drills all holes to predefined depths and allows the operator to take care of other duties as maintenance checks during the drilling process.

The ROC Manager is a PC software to plan drill patterns which then can be transferred to the drillrig using a data card.

The Measure While Drilling System automatically logs parameters, like hole depth, penetration rate, feed, percussion and rotary pressure. Together with the ROC manager these data can be used for analysis of rock properties and can be even displayed graphically in slices through the bench.

Using the GPS navigation there is no need to mark the holes manually anymore. The operator just drives the drillrig to predefined coordinates, which come from the planed blast pattern of the ROC manager. Together with the hole navigation system the GPS makes it possible to drill all holes to the same direction compared to conventional systems where the drillrig is positioned with a landmark in the distance (see Figure 46).



Figure 46: Comparison of conventional positioning and HNS

There is also a silenced version especially for urban areas available. Therefore the boom is enclosed with a frame of lightweight aluminium, which reduces noise levels of the drillrig by 10 dB(A).



Figure 47: Atlas Copco Roc F9 SmartRig Surface Crawler, Source [7]

In the future the system will be even able to drill without an operator and drive from hole to hole automatically.

### 7.3.2. REVIEW ON THE ACTUAL DRILLING

Referring to the actual bench height of ten meters it should be possible to drill much more accurate with the available surface crawler. Hole deviations therefore should not be bigger than 20 cm. A possibility is to install a guiding rod as the first rod to minimise deviations.

# 7.4. MEASURING BOREHOLE DEVIATIONS

The only reliable way to make a statement about the quality of the drilled boreholes is a deviation measurement with a system like the Boretrack-System.

There is always a safety risk present if you don't know where exactly your boreholes are drilled. Especially if the geology you have do drill your hole in is as irregular and the rock as jointed as it is in this mine. The possibility of a hole that is drilled with insufficient burden is therefore always a flyrock hazard.

## 7.5. **DETONATORS**

Nowadays the trend goes definitely into the direction of electronic detonators, like the ikonsystem of Orica for example (Figure 48).

Each detonator contains ล programmable computer chip. After attaching the detonator to a wire, the logger that is also connected to the wire, recognises the detonator, tests its functionality and assigns it with a delay time. Up to this time there is no way that the detonator can initiate, because the logger doesn't have enough energy to do so. To initiate the detonators the blaster is needed, which is connected to the logger and who needs a separate key.



Figure 48: The ikon-system of Orica, showing the electronic detonator, the blaster, the logger and the planning software, Source [10]

#### 7.5.1. REVIEW ON THE ELECTRIC DETONATORS

The now used electric detonators are not comparable to electronic detonators referring to their accuracy of delays and number of possible different delays. Especially if you have to take special care of vibrations because of neighbouring houses you should not use one delay time for two different holes if at the same time you don't want to reduce the number of holes per blast.

# 7.6. WAY OF INITIATION

The blast should be initiated from the borehole bottom with a TNT-Booster or a cartridged high energy blasting agent like gelatine explosives. In case of problems with a full detonation of the whole explosives column occur, it is advisable to use redundant initiation with bottom and top detonators. Figure 49 shows an ideal column.



Figure 49: Drawing of an ideal blasting column

## 7.6.1. REVIEW ON THE ACTUAL WAY OF INITIATION

The initiation of the explosive from the bottom of the hole results in a better energy efficiency. The detonating cord at the top of the hole also ejects the stemming right after the

initiation and cannot do what it is assigned for, namely to act like a closure for the hole and keep the gas pressure inside the borehole as long as possible.

# 7.7. BLASTING AGENT/COLUMN DESIGN

Concerning the kind of blasting agent there are some possibilities:

- Anfo explosives
- Slurry explosives
- Emulsion explosives or
- Heavy-Anfo explosives

From the described options Heavy Anfo is the newest one, although it can not be said, that this is best one. The explosive should be chosen in a way to best fit the rock. This can only be done by experimental trying.

#### 7.7.1. REVIEW ON THE COLUMN DESIGN

There is no clear rule how the column should be loaded and it does not only depend on the rock but also very much on the person that charges the holes. Sometimes the difference between loaded holes is more than one bag (25 kg) of Anfo although the holes got the same length and are just more widened from the drilling process, which results that more space is available for explosives.

## 7.8. LOADING THE HOLES

State of the art in loading the holes is using an adequate tool, depending on the kind of explosive. If you are using bulk emulsion explosives a pump truck is recommended. Explosives manufactures offer such systems also for anfo. It is also possible to use a trailer which could be pulled by the trucks available on site. Such a system is shown is Figure 50. It is equipped with a 3000 liters tank for anfo and two 100 liters tanks for fuel oil. It is able to mix and charge between 25 - 100 kg of explosives per minute. The charging unit also comes with its own power supply, which makes it even independent from the truck.



Figure 50: Example of an anfo trailer from DynoNobel, Source [8]

## 7.8.1. REVIEW ON LOADING THE HOLES

With regard to a healthy and in the length of time not harmful working condition, it should be said, that carrying 25 kg bags of anfo is not advised. This is also consistent with Luzenac's occupational health act which says:" Employee health is a top priority for Luzenac and it uses best available health and safety practices appropriate to its operations. ...", Source [9]

# 7.9. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLAST

State of the art in documentation of the blast is much more than the "Sprengarbeitenverordnung" regulates. It should be the goal not only to have to document the blast but to be able to benefit from the documentation. Therefore it is meaningful to film or make pictures of the blast.

Without sufficient documentation a lot of information on already fired shots is lost, which would help in the planning process of further blasts.

# 7.10. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLASTING RESULT

State of the art in documenting the blasting result would be to do this by making written notes and photos. An example for such a written documentation is shown in Table 17.

<b>Documentation of the Blasting Success</b>				
Number of holes:	Date of blast: Time:			
First impression	[from 1 (good) to 5 (bad)]			
Muck shape	[sketch]			
Muck throw	[from 1 (far) to 5 (close)]			
Fragmentation of muck	[from 1 (even) to 5 (uneven)]			
Number of boulders				
Any backbreak				
Extent of backbreak	[m]			
Any visible missfires				
More notes				

If you want to measure the blasting result the best thing to do is to measure the muckpile shape and the achieved fragmentation. This can be done by surveying the muck pile which is very time intensive. Another way to measure the fragmentation is to scan each truck with muck using a camera and post-process the pictures with an appropriate software.

#### 7.10.1. REVIEW ON DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLASTING RESULT

Unfortunately a lot of knowledge is lost by not documenting a fired blast. Written information can be very helpful in planning future blasts and also assists different shot-firers to get information from blasts they didn't fire.

٦

# 7.11. GROUND VIBRATIONS AND NOISE MEASUREMENTS

The state of the art and the regulatory requirements in Austria are to measure ground vibrations. Noise levels should be monitored regularly.

Regular information for the neighbours about the blasting work meets the standards in today's blasting practice. This can be done by:

- Organising regular information meetings with neighbours,
- Sending them information by mail or
- Setting up an information hotline.

# 7.11.1. Review on the actual state in ground vibrations and noise measurements

The measuring of the ground vibrations is done quite well. Noise levels should be measured from time to time and especially when delicate blasts are fired. To make sure the noise levels keep low, detonating cords should always be cut away and not hang out of holes or boulders and covered with sufficient material. Moreover the initiation of the column from the borehole bottom reduces noise levels because the produced energy that also produces the noise is kept as long as possible in the borehole.

Moreover the company should try to make further use of the ground vibration data, instead of just measuring them and filing them away.

The contact to neighbours could be intensified.

# 8. GAP ANALYSIS

This part of the thesis should describe what has to be done to come from today's practice in drilling and blasting to the ideal situation that was presented in chapter 7.

# 8.1. LAYOUT OF THE BLASTING WORK

In order to reach the status of the state of the art it is necessary to build up a management system for the complete planning process and the acquisition of all the relevant information. These comprise:

- Surveying of the wall and the drilled boreholes
- Planning and designing of a blast with an appropriate software
- Measuring of the borehole deviation
- Documentation of already blasted sites
- Adequate communication with neighbours
- Noise and Vibration monitoring

## 8.2. SURVEYING THE WALL

There is no further investment necessary. It is only advised to use the photogrammetric system more often in order to reduce holes that are drilled too long and know about the actual burdens.

## 8.3. DRILLING

As the SmartRig-System is one of the big technological developments, the actual drilling machine should be traded in to get a Roc F9 C.

## 8.4. QUALITY OF THE BOREHOLES

It is advised to measure the hole deviation regularly. This can be done by either purchasing a system similar to the Boretrack-System. Maybe it is then even possible to buy such a system in connection with a drill rig, where no extra time is consumed for the measuring, but measuring is conducted by lifting up the drill rod, after drilling. Or it is also thinkable to conclude a contract for example with the University of Leoben, who already possess such a system, to measure hole deviations regularly.

## 8.5. DETONATORS/WAY OF INITIATION

To have the latest technology in initiation a changeover to electronic detonators should be done. This should be accompanied by a complete redesign of the blast (burden, spacing, etc.) with an initiation of the blasting agent from the bottom of the hole with a redundant detonator if necessary.

## 8.6. BLASTING AGENT/COLUMN DESIGN

A test procedure should be started to find the explosive that fits the rock best respectively results in the desired fragmentation with fewest costs.

It should be stated that such a new choice in blasting agents should only be done if it goes hand in hand with a complete redesign of the blast, otherwise the positive effects won't come out that clearly.

## 8.7. LOADING THE HOLES

The purchase of an adequate charging tool is recommended. If a purchase is not wanted it is also possible to make a service contract with one of the available explosives provider.

## 8.8. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLAST

It would be necessary to buy a film camera or use the existing photo camera for a good documentation of the blast. Further on this information should be technical processed and stored to be able to go back and access data whenever needed.

## 8.9. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLASTING RESULT

It should be started to document the blasting result with written forms (see example in chapter 7.10), making photos of the muck, any back breaks and other useful and visible information one could benefit of later and store these data in well processed form which makes it easy to access and use these data in the future.

## 8.10. GROUND VIBRATIONS AND NOISE

Ground vibrations should be measured further on. Also noise levels should be measured from time to time which would be possible with the existing ground vibration measurement device. Further on ground vibration data should be processed more detailed to evaluate a prediction tool. To intensify the contact to the neighbours it would be possible to send an email to all neighbours that are interested about the actual blasting time simultaneously to the contact to Mr. Reithofer, the neighbour whose house is within the safety radius of nearly all blasts.

# 9. ECONOMIC AND SAFETY BENEFITS

# 9.1. SURVEYING OF THE WALL

The economic benefits are clear: a more regular use can reduce drill lengths and drill costs up to 20 % (see calculation in chapter 7.2.1)

The real good visualisation in colour of the actual burden for nearly every point of the wall is an important safety aspect that can show possible flyrock areas early and make quick reacting easy.

# 9.2. DRILLING

The advantages of the new drilling technology SmartRig are:

- There is no need to manually mark the drilling starting points, because of the GPS navigation.
- Therefore the set-up time is much higher, which increases the rig utilisation and saves time and money.
- An automatic feed alignment also reduces set-up time and eliminates operator errors, because of predefined drillings angles.
- The automatic rod adding system makes it possible that the operator can carry out maintenance checks or other duties while drilling, because there is no need for him to stay in his cabin for the drilling process.
- The Rig Control System (RCS) adjusts power, feed and penetration rate to the properties of the rock, which results in less bit wear and reduced fuel consumption up to 30 %.
- The Measure While Drilling System logs important data for a rock property analysis, which makes an adjustment of explosives to the rock more easy and results in more efficient blasting and less explosives usage.

# 9.3. QUALITY OF THE BOREHOLES

On the economic side should be stated that better quality holes lead to a much more regular fragmentation, less wear for the shovel, faster loading and less energy for further comminution. Boreholes without deviations also lead to bigger possible drill patterns, which reduces explosives costs and drilling footage.

From the safety advantages it is clear that better knowledge of the holes position lead to less risk of very low burden and therefore reduces the flyrock hazard. Even the case of too much

burden has an unpleasant aspect: blasting energy cannot be used for fragmentation if the burden is too big but will be transformed into vibration energy and may lead to damages on surrounding buildings.

## 9.4. DETONATORS

The fact that all detonators are identical, before a delay time is allocated, simplifies stockkeeping and eliminates the circumstance that a delay time can be out of stock. The high variability of delay times makes well pre-designed blasts with software possible and allows blasts with a higher number of holes without having to fear that vibrations increase. At the same time bigger blasts mean less numbers of blasts, which not only reduces complains by neighbours but is also a safety factor, because we might not forget that blasting is still a highly risky process.

In addition more precise delay times result in better fragmentation and easier rock-handling.

## 9.5. WAY OF INITIATION

Better energy efficiency causes less explosives consumption and therefore a cost reduction. Moreover an initiation of the blasting column from the bottom without a detonating cord at the top results in less generation of noise and reduces the risk of flyrock from stemming material due to blowouts.

## 9.6. BLASTING AGENT

The explosive that fits the rock best will probably result in less explosives consumption, hence reduced explosives costs, although it is not said that the outcome of a test procedure to find the best fitting explosive is not the actual used one.

## 9.7. LOADING THE HOLES

The whole charging process will be done within less time, because the workmen do not need to carry the explosives to every hole. This fact also improves the physical stress on the employees. Furthermore less manpower is needed. Whereas now the holes are charged by two or three men, with the DynoNobel charging unit just one is needed.

A charging unit enables the operator to put exact the same amount of explosive into every hole, which results in a better distribution over all holes, more homogeneous fragmentation, less explosives consumption and therefore reduces explosives costs.

## 9.8. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLAST

Filming or making photos of a blast is a very easy and not cost intensive instrument to document a blast.

It could also be a good proof with regard to possible flyrock accusations of neighbours, especially now that the new part of the mine in the south is much nearer to surrounding houses, than it was before in the northern part, where just one neighbour was actually affected.

## 9.9. DOCUMENTATION OF THE BLASTING RESULT

In order to follow the company's goal of continuous improvements it is necessary to measure what is actually done. Only by doing this it can be assured that any changes result in a reduction of costs, namely explosives costs but also loading time and wear of diggers and crushers.

## 9.10. NOISE AND VIBRATIONS

The benefits from a more intense use of already measured ground vibrations are to be able to predict vibrations better and find out how the blast vibrations propagate in the various parts of the rock mass stronger than other parts and what the possible reasons for this effect are. It is feasible that differences occur when blasting after heavy rainfall or in dry periods. Even effects from different temperatures in summer and winter are thinkable.

By doing this, areas that are sensitive in particular can be discovered and special care can be taken with maximum amount of explosives fired at once, when blasting there.

Keeping the noise levels down at blasts is also important because neighbours are always firstly frightened because of a sudden bang and the created air overpressure and not of vibrations. A blast that can barely be heard is therefore always a blast that does not create too much attention. This might not be an economic or safety benefit first, but saves a lot of discomfort and therefore time which most times results in cost savings.

Concerning neighbours it can be an advantage when abutting owners know a lot of what is going on especially about blasting, which in their view is always a threat to their property and a lot of troubles don't even arise. A good relationship between company and neighbours is therefore most times a part that can influence the success of such a big project like a mining operation, positively.

# **10. CONCLUSIONS**

## **10.1.** SHORT TERM REALISATION

All issues in this paragraph can be realised already this year, because either the company already owns the necessary equipment or no further investments are needed to realise them. Therefore the existing resources should be used better and more intense. This includes:

- The regular surveying of faces with the system of the 3G-company in order to be able to adapt the borehole depth to the bench height.
- A reduction of borehole deviations.
- The trying out of other explosives and a change of initiation practice together with a new design of the column with detonators at the bottom of the hole and if necessary redundant detonators on the top of the charge.
- A stepwise extension of the existing blast pattern of at least 50 % of the now used area per hole. This means from 12 m<sup>2</sup> to 18 m<sup>2</sup> blasted area per hole. This would be even possible without changing the detonators or delay times. Only the drilling accuracy has to be improved to reach this goal.
- The documentation of the blast and the blasting success with the existing photo camera, combined with a written evaluation as it is shown in chapter 7.10.
- A better utilisation of the vibration data, that has to be gathered by law anyway.
- The start of a community information campaign to intensify the contact to all neighbours. Especially to those, who will hear and feel the mine much more, because the main extraction area moves from the northern part of the mine to the southern part in the near future.

# **10.2.** MIDDLE TERM REALISATION

Topics here may already call for investments and reorganisation of working procedure. Therefore the timeframe is about two to four years. These comprise:

- The purchase of a technical tool that helps to make charging the holes easier, even faster and healthier for the workmen, because they would not have to carry 25 kg bags of explosives around anymore.
- The change from the existing electric detonators to electronic detonators, who allow bigger blasts, without increasing ground vibrations. Moreover blasts should be planned from then on with adequate software, which most times come with the electronic detonators.
• The purchase of AC's SmartRig-System, although it is relatively new on the market. Besides the advantages that were discussed in chapter 9.2, the company would be one of the first in the world to work with a new ground-breaking technology in surface drilling.

#### 10.3. LONG TERM REALISATION

The long term's aim has to be to build up a well working management system for the whole drilling and blasting process. All information for the design of each blast could be available there and all gained information from fired blasts is returned to it. This system should be aimed on continuous improvements of existing procedures in order to return not only more profit but also to create and keep a work environment were people work willingly and safely.

#### **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

- 1.) AtlasCopco press information, December 2006, SmartrigTM takes control
- 2.) AtlasCopco, Mining and contruction, Mechanised rock excavation with AtlasCopco, No 3, 2006
- 3.) European Federation of Explosives Engineers, 2005, Brighton, UK. Third EFEE world conference on explosives and blasting
- 4.) European Federation of Explosives Engineers, September 10-12, 2003, Prague, Czech Republic. Proceedings of EFEE second world conference on explosives blasting technique
- 5.) Gokhale, B V, 2003, Blasthole drilling technology
- 6.) Hagan P, Mort P, The University of New South Wales, Sydney, Australia, 2002, Guide to Report Writing in the School of Mining Engineering
- 7.) http://img01.atlascopco.com/Standard/SearchResult\_RecordInfoFrame.jsp?recordView=Searc hResult\_RecordInfo&catalogID=1&recordID=21109, 3<sup>rd</sup> of Jannuary 2007
- http://www.dynonobel.info/NR/rdonlyres/B1352474-52BF-40E7 8D76 B07C2483762D/0/AnfoMixer Ver1 2006 E.pdf, 3<sup>rd</sup> of Jannuary 2007
- 9.) http://www.luzenac.com/occupational\_health.htm, 3rd January of 2007
- 10.) http://www.orica-germany.com/html/e\_produkte\_zund.htm, 3rd of Jannuary 2007
- 11.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 10-13, 2002, Las Vegas, Nevada USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-eighth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 1
- 12.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 10-13, 2002, Las Vegas, Nevada USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-eighth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 2
- 13.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 13-16, 2000, Anaheim, California USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-sixth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique,
   Volume 1
- 14.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 13-16, 2000, Anaheim, California USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-sixth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 2
- 15.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 1-4, 2004, New Orleans, Louisiana USA. Proceedings of the thirtieth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 1
- 16.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 1-4, 2004, New Orleans, Louisiana USA. Proceedings of the thirtieth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 2
- 17.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 2-5, 2003, Nashville, Tennessee USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-ninth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique,
   Volume 1

- 18.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, February 2-5, 2003, Nashville, Tennessee USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-ninth annual conference on explosives and blasting technique,
   Volume 2
- 19.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, January 28-31, 2001, Orlando, Florida USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-seventh annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 1
- 20.) International Society of Explosives Engineers, January 28-31, 2001, Orlando, Florida USA.
   Proceedings of the twenty-seventh annual conference on explosives and blasting technique, Volume 2
- 21.) Jukka Naapuri, Tamrock, 2005. Surface drilling and blasting
- Julius Kruttschnitt Mineral Research Centre, The University of Queensland, Australia, 1996, Open pit blast design, analysis and optimisation
- 23.) Lecture notes to Sprengingenieurlehrgang, February 2006, Leoben, Austria
- 24.) Prof. Wang Xuguang, 2002, Rock Fragmentation by Blasting (China Society of Engineering Blasting, Beijing General Research Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, China)
- 25.) Rabenwald mine, 2007. Personal provided information on mine geology. 8<sup>th</sup> of January 2007
- 26.) Rabenwald mine, 2007. Personal provided map of mine. 29<sup>th</sup> of January 2007
- Rabenwald mine, 2007. Personal provided records of the drill operator and the shot-firer. 31<sup>st</sup> of January 2007

# APPENDIX A: DRILL OPERATOR'S AND SHOT-FIRER'S

## **BLAST RECORDS**

Naintsch M Ges.m.b.H	/ineralwerke I. Werk	1.03.00	Atlas Copc Bohrprotok	o F9 oll für die Sp	orengung Nr.	1	]
Anger/Stm	IA-0104 K					Betriebsstunden	Fahrz./min.
Datum:	30.8.a	Dieselstart/	Uhrzeit	1630	Schichtbeginn	6001	25 min
Revier:	Mittellea	Dieselstopp	/Uhrzeit	2030	Schichtende	6008	
Ffage:	1050	Bohrkrone I	Nr. / Ø:	102 m	_		
		Bohrist:		16 6	12° 1260	le	
	Pabracom	otrio:	Wandhöhe	H	11	lochabstand:	R.R.
31	8.06 CH	4. G	Debrieghne		10	Vorgabo:	35
A	14 - 60	5-14	Bonnochne	igung a :	10		20-
E	16 <sup>3°</sup> - 60	017	Bohrlochtie	fe T: optren)	Alm D	10/ 10/14/	0
	1	T		Boh	rmeter	1 Steeper W.	
atum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengt	Anmerkung befugten
30.8.06	1-22	1. Reiken	nil 3,5	m	12m	Mithel- 4	lar
37.8.06	23-34	4	4		72n	nitte	
	35-45	-11-	-11-		12m	-11_	
	46-47			-n <sup>-</sup>	Sm		
	1-5	Walz			2501	14a A	
	6- 9	Walz.		1.	Sm	Hert	
	70-73	Walze			3 m	- 5-	
	14-15	wolze			7m V	-4-	
	2X	Mugel			1,2 m 0,82	Y	
1				19. J. 19.			
Sohrmeter na	achbohren	Nn 141	15/16	lemml	Tull a	-10,5 m	Tife
A. 0730 A. 07 <sup>30</sup> E 14°	6008 6008 6014 6014 61	D 3 5 2 4 6 4 2 (19 (19 (19 (19 (19	7 (9) (11 2 (10 (12 ) (1 17 (16) (15)				
		*		Summe Bohr	meter f. Berat	(Bohrzeit/brutto Dauplan	)
		Boh	rprotokoll-Atlas Co	Summe Bohr pco.×ls 04.11.2003	meter f. Bergh 3 Pm	(Bohrzeit/brutto pauplan	)

Figure 51: Drill operator's record of the 2<sup>nd</sup> blast, Source [27]

Bint         Loch         Vor- gebe         Teufe         Sprengstoffenge in kg sprengstoffsorte         Besatz         Zünder:           1         4         6         8         10	Bohr: Sprer Uhrze	ngort: ndhöhe lochneig ngung: a eit:	Jung:	lelbsu Mun 80° 1.08.200 8.15	···· (	Gebirge: Gohrlochdur /erantwortl Gprengbefug	icher Leiter ter:	1/1en 1 102 bzw. Umheu. Chi	.mm Alar
1 $4m$ $5m$ $mm$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $5m$ $6m$ <	Bohr- loch Nr.:	Loch- abstd. m	Vor- gabe m	B_O H R Teufe m	-,L A D E- Sprengs Sprengst	UND Z Ü N stoffmenge coffsorte	DPLAN: in kg Gesamt- mengc	Besatz m	Zünder: 0-20
2       i	1	4m	3.5m	Am		-			Stufe
3       2, Sm       Supage: 1/24/-7       92.5%         4       b       5%       Pride: 924-7       230.6%         5       3m       Pride: 924-7       230.6%         7       3m       2.60 m. Gr. 10.7%       10.7%         9       0       10.7%       10.7%       10.7%         9       0       10.7%       10.7%       10.7%         10       4m       11.7%       12.7%       12.7%         11       0       4.7%       12.7%       13.7%         12       0       4.7%       13.7%       14.7%         13       0       10.7%       1.7%       1.7%         14       11.7%       1.7%       1.7%       1.7%         14       11.7%       1.7%       1.7%       1.7%         15       11.8%       1.7%       1.7%       1.7%         16       1.7%       1.7%       1.6%       1.7%         18       1.7%       1.6%       1.7%       1.6%	2		4	e Ø131.					
4       4       56       74       110       110       110       110       110       111 <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2.5m</td> <td>Superior</td> <td>17/1 -7</td> <td>415K</td> <td></td> <td></td>	3			2.5m	Superior	17/1 -7	415K		
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	4			1 5BI.	Jacides	- ALLENCE	is sig		
1.6       0       4KL       10       4KL       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       11       12       12       11       12       11       12       12       13       11       12       12       13       11       12       13       11       12       13       11       12       13       14       12       14       12       14       12       14       15       11       12       14       15       11       15       11       15       11       15       11       15       11       15       11       16       12       13       14       14       14       15       11       16       12       13       14       14       14       14       14       15       16       12       12       14       14       15       16       12       13       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       15       16       12       12       12       12       12       <	5			3111	Poille:	824 -7	2300-h		
7       3m       L= MA       R= 260 m flv       Marthoph         9       0       0more       0more       10       10       10       10       10       10       11       12       11       12       12       12       12       12       12       13       11       12       12       13       11       12       12       13       11       12       13       11       12       14       14       14       14       14       14       14       15       16       16       16       17       16       17       18       16       17       18       16       17       18       16       17       18       16       16       17       18       19       10	6			C 4BL.			8		0.4
8       1 <th1< th=""> <th1< th=""> <th1< th=""></th1<></th1<></th1<>	7			3im	L= ARA	1: R=	260 m li	Reithol	P
9       Vmilt :       Y.1       Y.1 <thy.1< th="">       Y.1       <thy< td=""><td>8</td><td></td><td></td><td>l 2BL.</td><td>11</td><td>0/</td><td></td><td>7</td><td></td></thy<></thy.1<>	8			l 2BL.	11	0/		7	
10       4m       4m       4m         11       6       4500       10000       100000       100000       100000       100000       1000000       100000 <td>9</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Umort</td> <td>= 4,1 m</td> <td>m/s isla</td> <td>1 eques les</td> <td></td>	9	2			Umort	= 4,1 m	m/s isla	1 eques les	
11       0       4560         12       13       14/5-0/20)-00%-2/38502         13       14/5-0/20)-00%-2/38502         14       15       16         15       115       115         16       16       16         17       18       19         18       19       10         20       10       10         21       10       10         22       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       11       11         20       1	10	4m	Ym	Alm					
12       13       14       14       15       16       15       16       17       16       17       18       19       19       10 <td< td=""><td>11</td><td></td><td></td><td>e 45Bl.</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	11			e 45Bl.					
13       14       14       15       18       16       17         18       19       10 <t< td=""><td>12</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	12				-		0		
15       118       16       17         17       17       18       19       10         19       20       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10       10         20       10       10       10 <t< td=""><td>13</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>MB= 0</td><td>1707 106</td><td>8- 2,385</td><td>07</td><td></td></t<>	13				MB= 0	1707 106	8- 2,385	07	
16       17       16         17       18       19         18       19       10         20       10       10         7a.       10       10         19       10       10         20       10       10         7a.       10       10         19       10       10         20       10       10         7a.       10       10         19       10       10         20       10       10         20       10       10         7a.       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10         10       10       10 </td <td>15</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1110</td> <td>1 1 1</td> <td>/</td> <td></td> <td></td>	15				1110	1 1 1	/		
17       17         18       19         19       20         20       7a.         37       36         36       30         Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:       Sprengstoff: GD1kg ANCkg         Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:       GD1kg ANCkg         Sonstige-Löcher	16		-		VIS=	1,68			
18       19       19       10         20       20       20       20       20         7a.       20       20       20       20       20         7a.       20       20       20       20       20       20         7a.       20	17		-						
19       20 <td< td=""><td>18</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	18								
20	19				-				
Pa.       P	20								
B'	29	-							
B'									
Sohllöcher: Tiefe:m       Sprengstoff: GD1kg ANCkg        Fächerlöcher:Tiefe:m       GD1kg ANCkg         Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:       ANC - Anteil:         Sel.Don.1 60/700kg       Kopflöcher%         Mowolit)       45/350kg         30/350kg       Sonstige-Löcher%         ambrit losekg       Zündmittel:         Rowolan)       Zünder(Type). HU62st.         Haufwerk:m <sup>3</sup> =t       Spez.Sprengstoffverbrauch=g/t	ø								
Sprengstoff: GD1       GD1      kg ANC      kg         Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:       GD1      kg ANC      kg         Sel.Don.1 60/700      kg       ANC - Anteil:      kg         Solition 45/350      kg      kg         30/350      kg      kg         ambrit lose      kg         Rowolan)      kg         Zündmittel:		ohllöch	er T	iefe•		II			
Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:       GD1kg ANCkg         Sel.Don.1 60/700kg       45/350kg         wwolit)       45/350kg         30/350kg       30/130kg         Sonstige-Löcherkg       Sonstige-Löcherkg         Nowolan)       Zündmittel:         Det. Zündschnur	F	ächerlö	cher.T	iefe:	••••••	Sprengsto	<u>ff:</u> GD1	kg ANC .	kg
Sprengstoff - Zusammenstellung:         ANC - Anteil:           Gel.Don.1 60/700	ni se ste d	JOU ICT TO	51161 - 1.		••••••		GD1	kg ANC .	kg
Gel.Don.1 60/700       kg         45/350       kg         30/350       kg         30/130       kg         ambrit       lose         Bowolan)       Jose         Bowolan)       Jose         Bowolan)       Jose         Jose       Jose	Spreng	stoff -	Zusam	Tenstellung	::		ANC - Anto	4 <b>1</b> •	14 <b>1 1</b>
45/350	Gel.Do	n.1 60/	700		kg	[www	ANG - AITLE	11.	
30/350	wolit	45/	350		kg	Kopfl	ocher	••••••	%
30/130		30/	350		kg	insae	samt		
Rowolan) Rowolan) Bowolan) Autor (Type) Autor (Type)	ambri	30/	130	•••••	kg				
Howolan) Zünder(Type). HUG2m Haufwerk:m <sup>3</sup> =t Spez.Sprengstoffverbrauch=g/t		5 IU		•••••	кд	Undmi	ttel:	610	
Haufwerk:m <sup>3</sup> =t Spez.Sprengstoffverbrauch=g/t	HOWDIA	en)				Zünden	(Type)	62	· · · m
Spez.Sprengstoffverbrauch=g/t						Houfwer	(Type). 777.	.3	St.
spez.sprengstoriverbrauch=g/t						Coor C		·····	t
						spez.S	prengstofive	rbrauch=	g/t
umme: Bemerkungen:					ka	Bemerkı	ingen:		

Figure 52: Shot-firer's record of the 2<sup>nd</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 53: Shot-firer's plan of the 2<sup>nd</sup> blast, Source [27]

Naintsch I Ges.m.b.H Rabenwal	Mineralwerk I. Werk d A - 8184	e 5.09.00	Atlas Copc Bohrprotok	o F9 oll für die S	prengung Nr.	1	
Anger/Stm	1k					Betriebsstunder	n Fahrz./min.
Datum:	2-9.06	Dieselstart/	Uhrzeit	08	Schichtbeginn	6017	15 mi
Revier:	Reithof	Dieselstopp	o/Uhrzeit	14 40	Schichtende	60 22	+ 20min .
Etage:	1060	Bohrkrone	Nr. / Ø:	100			
		Bohrist:		Ablake	leä. Ch.		
	Bohrgeon	netrie:	Wandhöhe	Н:	14n	Lochabstand	3,8
4.9.	06 CH.6	22	Bohrlochne	igung α :	80 0	Vorgabe:	3,5
E1	33 60	28	Bohrlochtie (inkl. Untert	fe T: pohren)	14n		]
				Boh	rmeter	Gehirge bzw	Anmorkung
atum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Spreng	befugten
1- 2.9.06	7-2	Hugge	\$ 95		7-0	Hart	
	3-9	Walze	· · · · · ·		2m~	hitte	
	10-20	walze			3~~	buttle	
	27-37	Walzo	0 -		5~4.	12 Hel	
	32-37	3,5	3,8		12 m C.	lyart	
	38-58				And	-11-	
	58-57				620		
4806	62-69	licita			5.1	IA I VI	
	65-16	Macle Inc.C.			7	maind	
	67-69	Walto			75.4	~~~	
1	70 77				1,110		
Bohrmeter na	chbohren						
	70-72	Walze n.	Elape tief	er (1050)	7,5mV	Hart	
	≠ 73	huggel	J		7m V	-12	
							-8
Summe:		ana an		Tables war and the stage of the state		1	
A.A.	4.60	6		-		4	
A. 19	45 60	228					
Ē. 16	10 60	30			-		
					(	Bohrzeit/brutto	)
			S	Summe Bohrr	neter f. Bergba	auplan	
		Bohn	protokoll-Atlas Cope	co.xis 04.11.2003	Pni		and a second

Figure 54: Drill operator's record of the 3<sup>rd</sup> blast, Source [27]

Spre Ø Wa Bohr	ngort: . ndhöhe lochneig	「IEF ////////////////////////////////////	BOHRL 0.fm 	0 C H S P	RENGU Gebirge: . Bohrlochdur Verantwort	NG Nr.: MGMG- rchmesser:	14un I 190	 .mm
Uhrz	eit:	13 9	B_0 H R-	 	Sprengbefug UND Z Ü N	nter: <i>Ale</i> DPLAN:	denber	Artic
Bohr- loch Nr.:	Loch- abstd. m	Vor- gabe m	Teufe m	Sprengs	stoffmenge toffsorte	in kg Gesamt- menge	Besatz m	Zünder: 0-20
1	3. Pm	3.5m	Am	+	-			Stufe
2	210 00	2/201	C 2B1.					
3			1.5m	Super Day	1 211 -	EDR		
4			U GBI	- porgo	r au:	2011		
5			2m	Emila	1: 124 -	~ G50 Bo		
6			V 7131.	1	210.91.	ry		
7			3m	Phille	: 564 -	MIDO Bio	K	
8			U 13131.			1 de la de l		
9			Sm	L= No	20.10: R	= 230 m	lis Reil	ho Dia
10		-	I AUBI.		01			- A
11			611		-	7		-
12			<u>0</u> 2131,	Umax	E 4,5	mm/sis	Lau en	resten
13	-		Sm Dal					
15			2131.					
16			1740	110-	10101	11 000	00	-
17			& 37RL.	10112-	VITUTA	068 - 2, 34	206	
18			JAIN .	UR:	00			
19					april 1			
20								
∩a.								
ø								
	Sohllöch	er: T	iefe:		<u>_</u>			
F	ächerlö	cher:T:	Lefe:		_sprengsto	<u>OTI:</u> GD1	kg ANC	kg
		econose da avala	omenanan (1202-1203-18.			GD1	kg ANC	kg
Spreng	stoff -	Zusam	nenstellung	:		ANC - Ante	eil:	
Gel.Do	n.1 60/	700	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	kg	Kopf1	öcher		%
lowoli.	t) 45/ 30/	350	••••••	kg kg	Sonst	ige-Löcher samt	<u></u>	%
ambri	t 10	130 Se		кg	7ünder-	ttcl.		
Rowol	an)				Det. Z	ündschnur (Type).///	520	m C+
					Haufwe	rk:	m <sup>3</sup> =	+
					Snez S	Tenastoffyo	rhrauch-	 
					Borrow	JISSES .	1010UU=	g/t
			and the second	The second s	Denerki	Juden:		

Figure 55: Shot-firer's record for the 3<sup>rd</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 56: Shot-firer's plan of the 3<sup>rd</sup> blast, Source [27]

Naintsch Min	ieralwerke		Atlas Copco	F9			]
Rabenwald A	verk \ - 8184	7.09.06	Bohrprotoko	bii tur ale Sp	orengung Nr.		 Fabrz./min
Datum:	4.9.06	Dieselstart/	Uhrzeit	1630	Schichtbeginn	6030	30min
Revier:	Reithele	Dieselstopp	/Uhrzeit	20 45	Schichtende	6034	
Etage:	1076	Bohrkrone N	Nr. / Ø:	100			
		Bohrist:		Ablale			
F	Bohraeome	etrie:	Wandhöhe ł		10 K	Lochabstand:	3.8
			Bohrlochneig	gungα:	80 "	Vorgabe:	3,5
			Bohrlochtiefe	e T: ohren)	90,5		
		anan ar an		Boh	meter	Cobirgo bzw	Apporkup
`atum ₿	ohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengt	pefugten
4.9.06	7-13	3,5	3,8		70,5 m	hille -	Hert
5.906	14-30				10,5 n	- 14_	_
Y							
ohrmeter nach	bohren						
summe:		and the second particular designment		27			
А.Л. А. 19 <sup>30</sup> Е 19 <sup>45</sup>	5.1. 06 2 6031 5 6031	G A 11	4.6.6.4.0 9°°- 603 3° - 604	9 2			
			S	umme Bohrr	(I neter f. Berob	Bohrzeit/brutto) auplan	

Figure 57: Drill operator's record of the 4<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Spre Ø Wa Bohr Spre Uhrze	ngort: . ndhöhe lochneig ngung: g ait:	.R4i H	7.09.20	∷ Gi Be 0 <sup>'</sup> <sub>6</sub> Ve Sp LADE-L	wbirge: ohrlochdur arentwortl orengbefug JND Z Ö N	ter:	Hacl. 100 idenbase	.mm Chevis have
Bohr- loch	Loch- abstd.	Vor- gabe	Teufe	Sprengst	offmenge offsorte 1	in kg Gesamt-	Besatz	Zünder:
Nr.:	n	m				menge		0-20 Stufe
1	3. Sin	3, Sim	1m			Same Str.		00010
2		_	4 ABC	Super Cel	641	150B		
3			ADT	10.000	6.50	41500		
5			145m	Philla	0711-7	16154		
6			4501	Entrelation	74.5	1200		
7				~mu upit		1 mg		
8								
9					-			
10							1000	
11		_						
12								
14				1/4 01 -	0.2.	1 1	1	/
15				e may +	215.60	n/A est	all arm	-
16				MB-	0,202 10	68. 1.40	223UR	
17					1	7/10	1 3 2 10	
18				413-	0,9			
19								
20								
8.								
ß								
	öchllöch ächerlö stoff -	er: T cher:T Zusam	iefe: iefe:	m	Sprengsto	<u>ff:</u> GD1 GD1 ANC - Ante	kg ANC kg ANC	kg kg
Gel.Do Nowoli	n.1 60/ t) 45/ 30/ 30/	700 350 350		kg kg	Kopfl Sonst insge	öcher ige-Löcher samt		····.%
Lambri Rowoli	t lo an)	se		kg	Zündmit Det, Zü Zünder Haufwei	indschnur (Type). <i>HU</i>		m St. I.Ct
					Spez.Sp	rengstoffve	rbrauch= A	33o/t
					Bananka	innent		17.000000000000000000000000000000000000

Figure 58: Shot-firer's record of the 4<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 59: Shot-firer's record of the 4<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Ges.m.b.H Rabenwal Anger/Strr	I. Wark d A - 8184 ik	8.08.06	- Bohrproto	okoll für die S	iprengung Nr.	Betriebsstunden	Fahrz./min.
Datum:	7.9.06	Dieselstar	t/Uhrzeit	1730	Schichtbeginn	6052	2000
Revier:	Reithof	Dieseistop	p/Uhrzeit	20 45	Schichtende	6055	
Etage:	1050	Bohrkrone	Nr. / Ø;	102			
	20000	Bohrist:		Opeale	14eier		
	Bohrgeom	etrie:	Wandhöh	e H:	12 -	Lochabstand:	3,8
8. 9.	OG CHIG	5	Bohrlochn	elgung a :	P0"	Vorgabe:	35
A6 E1S	5- 6061		Bohrlochti (inkl. Unte	efe T: rbohren)	12 .		-
				Boi	nmeter	Gebirge bzw. A	nmerkunn
nute"	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengb	efugten
1-7-9.de	1-7	7. Reihe	3,5	_	12.	学研究-	Hart
8.9.06	8-25		1		Alen	-11-	-
ī							
ohrmeter na	chbohren						
Summe:		(				101000	
Д.4 Д. 16 Е. 21	8.9.07 15 601 20 60	65- 65-			,		
				Summe Bohr	(E meter f. Bergbs	Bohrzeit/brutto) Iuplan	

Figure 60: Drill operator's record of the 5<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Spre Ø Wa Bohr Spre Uhrz	ngort: ndhöhe lochneig ngung: e eit:	I I E I Rectly jung: im	ВОНЯЦ	D C H S P I G B B C C S F L A D E- L	<u>RENGU</u> birge: bhrlochduz rentwortl brengbefug IND ZÖN	NG Nr.: 	-? 1441 192 192 192 . 192 .	inn 474
Bohr- loch Nr.:	Loch- abstd. m	Vor- gabe m	Teufe	Sprengst Sprengsto	offmenge	in kg Gesamt- menge	Besetz	Zünder:
1	20	25	10					Stufe
1	Som	8.54	Adm					
-			C 5781.	xpeijeli	4647	1001		
4		-		P II.	7.200			
6				In aller	654-7	1625 Rg		
6		-	1	ELI	11	9		1
-7				Emplorit	164-1	400 Rg		
8						0		
9				7 - 1111	1 n	030 0	1 17 1	17
10				6-1142	F.15-	270m 8	5 kilhok	V
11	1	100	1000		19110		1	
12				Than >x -	276	1. 1		1
13				CPPHOA =	2/7 m	WILS IST	all enus	ten
14				182 -	0 00 10	0. 100	2.40	
15				2115 -	0,401/01	8 1998	14	
16				IAR -	1.4			
17				-	-4-	2		
18								
19	-	1.13	-					
20								
Ъ.								
8				2223				
	Soblines	ant T	lofai					
Spreng Gel.Do Kowoli	ächerlö stoff - n.1 60/ t) 45/ 30/	cher:T Zusam 700 350	iefe: menstellung:	m	Kopfl Sonst	ff: GD1 GD1 ANC - Ante Scher igs-Löcher	kg ANC kg ANC eil:	kg
COMPANY.	30/	130		kg	insge	semt		
ambri	t 10	se		kg	_70ndmi	ttal:	No. of Concession, Name	
Rowol	an)				Det. Zü Zünder Haufwei Spez.Sp	indschnur (Type) <i>HV.</i> ck:5.995 prengstoffve	530 45 m <sup>3</sup> = 19,76. rbrauch=. 1	st. 3.t 44g/t

Figure 61: Shot-firer's record of the 5<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 62: Shot-firer's plan of the 5<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

				- 50		
Naintsch M Ges.m.b.H Rabenwald	/ineralwerke . Werk J A - 8184	15.03.00	Bohrprotok	oll für die Sp	rengung Nr.	A .
Datum:	13 8 76	Dieselstart	/Uhrzeit	1430	Schichtbeginn	6101 15min
Revier:	Raillake	Dieselstop	o/Uhrzeit	2130	Schichtende	6107
Etage:	1060	Bohrkrone	Nr. / Ø:	102 m	7	
		Bohrist:		M. Chias	1Ablah	
	Bohrgeom	etrie:	Wandhöhe	H:	11m	Lochabstand: 3,5
14.	9. 06 CHIE	5	Bohrlochne	igung α :	150	Vorgabe: 3,5
E20	- 611	7	Bohrlochtie (inkl. Untert	fe T: pohren)	12m	
				Bohr	meter	Gebirge bzw. Anmerkung
Itum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengbefugten
13.9.06	1-20			M-	12mi	Sal
	1-16				2m	-11
14 8.06	7-9	35	3.8		11mV	hillel - Hart
	10-16	3,5	3,8		77. 5ml	- 16-
11 11 11	77		11-		72~	-11
19.9.00	10-29	- 11			All m	
0						
Bohrmeter na	chbohren	10XU	orlebort	E		
		vone	El Bru	lig		
		and the second	(1999)	7 a	aatsa (*** 5) ***	anan ar 1. ar - ar an an an ar ar ar an
Summe:						
A.A.	12 8.00	6				
A. 083	0 6707					
E. 1400	6772					
						Debre (March)
				Summe Bohrr	( neter f. Bergb	Bonrzeit/brutto) auplan
		Boh	rprotokoll-Atlas Cor	co.xls 04.11.2003	Pm	

Figure 63: Drill operator's record of the 6<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

γ

ſ

Spre Ø Wa Bohr Spre Uhrz	ngort: ndhöhe lochneig ngung: a eit:	gung: .	2 (г. 14м. 25° 15.05.200	G B V S	ebirge: ohrlochdur erantwortl prengbefug	MG Nr.: MG Hel chmesser: icher Leiter ter: Alere	- 145 L 102 bzw. lenheus A	.mm wish-
Bohr- loch	Loch- abstd.	Vor- gabe	Teufe	Sprengst	toffmenge offsorte	in kg Gesamt-	Besatz	Zünder:
Nr.:	m	m	m		1	menge	m	0-17
1	38m	3.Sin	Lin					Stufe
2			L 16B1.					C. The second
3				Superful	54>	125B		
4			Min			. 3		
5		- 1101	JE 3B1.	Emilgit	134>	325kg		
7			19,5m	Allaria	224	100-0		
8			1240	1411/1-0	774-	11925-Rg		
9			& 28BL.			0		
10							Contraction of the second	C. CATOLOGIC HAR
11		-				ana ana	STILL PRIME IN	
12				Umix =	9,25	mm/sis	1 21 Price	ten ten V
13							A.10-	and the second
14				100		0.10		
10			Station and	U15 = C	17071	068 . 21	59127	
17				TIN -	1 02			
18			10000		1183	_		
19								
20							ter alle services and the	
Sa.								
æ.								an a
	Sohllöch	ner: T	iefe:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Separante	ff. CD1	he INC	
1	ächerlö	icher:T	iefe:	m -	oprengs cu.	GD1	kg ANC	кд kg
pren	stoff -	Zusam	menstellung	:		ANC - Ante	il:	
awoli	t) 45/ 30/	350	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	kg kg kg	Kopfli Sonst:	öcher ige-Löcher samt		····.%
ambri	.t 10	130	•••••	kg	70-4-11			
Rowol	an)				Det. Zü Zünder	Indschnur (Type)H.	5.30 51	m St.
					Haufwer	:k:	m <sup>3</sup> =	t
					Spez.Sp	prengstoffve	rbrauch=	g/t
umme ·		Contract of the	No. Contraction	1	Bemerku	ingen:		
	11- 270-2		<del> </del>	<u></u>				

Figure 64: Shot-firer's record of the 6<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Naintsch M Ges.m.b.H Rabenwald	fineralwerke . Werk d A - 8184	19.09.06	Atlas Copco Bohrprotoko	o F9 oll für die Sp	rengung Nr.		
Anger/Stm	k	7		0195		Betriebsstunden	Fahrz./min.
Datum:	76.9.06	Dieselstart/	Uhrzeit	06	Schichtbeginn	6777	5) 0011/1
Revier:	Reithofer	Dieselstopp	/Uhrzeit	19 40	Schichtende	6727	+ 20min
Etage:	1086	Bohrkrone I	Nr. / Ø:	102			
		Bohrist:		Ablale 1	Todling		
TG.	Bohrgeom	etrie:	Wandhöhe I	H:	17.54	Lochabstand:	3,4
A:6127	The		Bohrlochnei	gung α:	750	Vorgabe:	3.2
E1 6733	-14		Bohrlochtief	e T	12,		
			(inkl. Unterb	ohren)	16 4		
				Bohr	meter	Gebirae bzw. /	Anmerkung
atum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengb	efugten
1-16.9.	1-18	3,2	3,4		72m	ltar	1
18.9.	19-26	3,2	3,4		12m	Hert	
<u> 78. ſ.</u>	27-47				72m	-11-	
				-1.			
				-			
5						1	
Bohrmeter na	chbohren					5	
	2						
Summe:		Real Property and the second				na kana na kana na kana kana kana kana	
	L		L				
A.A.	78. 4	. 06					
A. 19	00 67	133					
E. 27	15 61	140					
					4	Dohrait/hwate-	
			S	umme Bohrn	() neter f. Berab	auplan	
-		Bohŋ	protokoll-Atlas Copo	co.xls 04.11.2003	Pni		

Figure 65: Drill operator's record of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

S	PT -		
	-1	TH	18
	-		•~•

-1	1	E	F	В	0	H	R	L	0	С	Н	S	P	R	E	Ν	G	U	Ν	G	Nr.:	
					-	Assessment and the second					_	_		-	-	-	_					

BLOHR-, LADE-UNDZÜNDPLAN:

Bohr-	Loch-	Vor-	Teufe	Sprengs	offsorte	in kg Gesamt-	-	Zünder:
Nr.:	m	m	m	oprenega	1130108	menge	Besatz m	0-17
1	3,4	3,2	12 m					Stufe
2			1 48 BL					
3								
4				Super	001. 22	K>	550 k	
5				1 - point	ser. 22		10 JU Ma	
6				Emileria	1. 7	K>	175 h	
-7				1 de la			115 hay	
8				ANFO	: 675	$\rightarrow \Lambda$	675 hu	
9				1	1		1 d	A
10				L=1	53,20 kg	: R= 20	om hi	Reilla
11					9	1	1 ner	- monorch
12				Van	x = 70	omils =	the David	1.
13				1	.,	/=	we	Victor
14				UB- C	70710	08- 5,96	808	
15						/		1
16				NR =	3 86			
17							1	
18								and the second second
19								
20		-						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
fa.								
ø								
Spreng	öohllöch ächerlö stoff -	er: T: cher:T: <u>Zusam</u> 700	iefe: iefe: menstellung:	m	Sprengsto	o <u>ff:</u> GD1 GD1 ANC - Ant	kg ANC kg ANC eil:	kg kg
lowoli	t) 45/ 30/ 30/	350 350 350	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	kg	Kopfl Sonst insge	öcher ige-Löcher. samt	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·····% ·····%
.ambri Rowola	t lo an)	se		kg	Zündmi Det.Z	ttel: ündschnur .	520	m
					Zunder Haufwe:	(lype) <i>#Q</i> rk: <i>6.2.6.7</i>	.m <sup>3</sup> = 75.66	St. 7t
					Spez.S	orengstoffve	erbrauch=./	2g/t
Summe:			<u></u>	.kg	Demerki	ungen:		
atum:								

Figure 66: Shot-firer's record of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Maintech	ineralworke	z	Atlas Cor	co F9			1
Ges.m.b.H.	Werk		Bohrproto	okoll für die Sr	prengung Nr.		
Rabenwald	A - 8184 <	26.09.	06			Betriebsstunden	Fahrz./min.
Datum:	25.9.0	Dieselstar	t/Uhrzeit	7550	Schichtbeginn	6760	15 tun
Revier:	Rrughof	Dieselstop	p/Uhrzeit	1430	Schichtende	6777	
Etage:	1068	Bohrkrone	) Nr. / Ø:	700	7		
Ū	1	Bohrist:		itblak			
	Bohraeom	etrie:	Wandhöh	e H:	8 n	Lochabstand:	3,8
A.A.	26.1.0	6	Bohrlochn	eiauna α :	25 °	Vorgabe:	3.4
A. 06 E 70	30 677	7	Bohrlochti (inkl. Unte	efe T:	8,52		
	[	1		Boh	rmeter	Cabirgo have	Anmarkung
⊂ ∍tum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Sprengl	befugten
1-25. 9.00	1-25	3,4	3,8		8,5ª	hille	~ Hort
	26				100	-6-	
	27				72~	- *-	
	28-79	3,6	3,8		-14n	~ 5-	
	40-44			_	Zm	~~~~~	
26.9.06	45-55				bm	-11-	
	56-63				P,5~	~1~	
						-	
sonrmeter na	chbohren					I Alexandra Alexandra	
						and a state of the second state of the second	
Summe:				L		000	- ment
			000	000	0050	2 (43) (49) (	3600
		ana	B B B B		5 60 (1)	40	
	15 6	DODE	D GD GD G	a ca ca			
-	900	The second	6000		1		
2	10 1	9 9 9		(20)			
2	· ③	20	300	D			
7	300	D D	56 3 ( Tr	)	(	Bohrzeit/brutto	)
	-	-		Summe Bohr	meter f. Bergb	auplan 🛛	
		Bo	hrprotokoll-Atlas C	Summe Bohr	meter f. Bergb	auplan	

Figure 67: Drill operator's record of the 8<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Firma								
í.			1					
	_	TIEF	BOHRLO	СНЅР	RENGU	NG Nr.:		
Sprer Ø War	ngort: ndhöhe	Krugh	ot 12m	G	ebirge: ./	Uitter-Ha	rt	
Bohrl	ochneig	jung:	750		onriochdur	comesser: 📈	700	. mm
Spren Uhrze	ngung: a nit:	13.45	. 7. 2006	·. s	prengbefug	ter:	WARZ-	
			<u>в:</u> ОНR-,	LADE-	UNDZÜN	DPLAN:		
Bohr-	Loch-	Vor-	-	Sprengs	toffmenge	in kg		
loch	abstd.	gabe	leufe	Sprengst	offsorte	Gesamt-	Besatz	Zünder:
Nr.:	m	m	m			menge	m	0-77
1	3.8	3,4	6 m					Stufe
2			V 11 BL	Supe	Rel AGK	5P-7 4125 la		
3			7 m			J		
4			V 5BL	Priller	865	- 2150.kg		
5			dism			σ		
7			V 33 BL	0	11-		1	
8			NO M	K=	240 m	Lpest a	105 kg	
9			17.					
10	38	3.6	V ABL					ļ
11		210	14 m		(max:	6.25		
12			V AZBL		-	U(S 3 MAN/		
13					KB=	2.35		
14								
15								
16								
18								
19								
20								
Ъ.								
a*								
SS	ohllöch	er: Ti	efe.	- m				
F	ächerlö	cher:Ti	efe:	m	Sprengsto	<u>ff:</u> GD1	kg ANC	kg
Spreng	stoff -	Zusam	enstellung:			ANC Apto	Kg ANU	kg
Gel.Dor	1.1 60/	700		ka	14. 000	ANU - AIITE	1,1,	
owolit	;) 45/ 30/	350 350		kg	Sonst:	ige-Löcher		· · · · · .%
ambrii	30/	130 se		kg	70		-1	
Rowola	in)				Det. Zü Zünder (	indschnur 6	40	m S+
					Haufwer	k 7511	3 = 187	7.9.t
					Spez.Sp	rengstoffver	brauch=	36 q/t
iumme:				kg	Bemerku	ingen:		0,
atum.				L	r			
a soull.								

Figure 68: Shot-firer's record of the 8<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 69: Shot-firer's plan of the 8<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Naintsch M	lineralwerke	8	Atlas Cop	co F9		P	-
Ges.m.b.H Rabenwald	. Werk I A - 8184	28.09.0	Bohrproto	koll für die S	prengung Nr	· [	
Anger/Stm	k		-			Betriebsstunde	<u>1 Fahrz./min.</u>
Datum:	26.9.00	Dieselstart	/Uhrzeit	17	Schichtbegin	6774	75 mi
Revier:	Reit hope	Dieselstop	p/Uhrzeit	13 45	Schichtende	6177	+75 min
Etage:	1040	Bohrkrone	Nr. / Ø:	102			
		Bohrist:		Ad Cale			
	Bohrgeom	etrie:	Wandhöhe	e H:		Lochabstand	3,6
A.A	27.9.0	172	Bohrlochn	eigung α :	750	Vorgabe:	3.5
A. O	030 6	187	Bobrlochtig	ofe T.			7
E. 1			(inkl. Unter	rbohren)	Laurence of the second		1
and the second second		T		Boh	irmeter	Gehirge haw	Anmorkum
- tum	Bohrl. Nr.	Vorgabe	Seiten- abstand	von	bis	für Spreng	befugten
1-26.9.06	1-9	3.4	3,6		-12n	itart	
27.8.06	10-37	3,5	3,6	-	72a		
	38-49	Hugeel	NOX		7 m	Hart	
	Nr. 73/14	129/25/	Talk				<b></b>
	10/17	27/37/32					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	11. 22/22	12 h.2	p/ tol	Alab 1	haul		
	Wr. COLS	150 015	com iac	G/ab bin	liart		
				-			
J							
ohrmeter na	chbohren						
						1	
<u> </u>		An and the set of a proved subsectioned			and the first of the second of the second second	4544 maa amma ka ka ada a si minimisi maa maa adaa ada	
umme:	L						
		SD@					
		DEE					
	P.	DO DO	T				
	C	DO DO	39				
		DO CO	07				
	-		en la			(Bohrzeit/brutto	)
	C	ESO		Summe Bohr	meter f. Bergt	auplan	
		161 / 1911					-

Figure 70: Drill operator's record of the 9<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

Sprei Ø Wai Bohr: Sprei Uhrze	ngort: ndhöñe lochneig ngung: a sit:	TIEF Reath jung:	BOHRL ofer 750 18:9.06	0 C H S P F	ENGU birge: hrlochdur rantwortl rengbefug	NG Nr.: Harf. (. chmesser: icher Leite ter:	Talk) No2 n bzw. hu.ao2	
Bohr- loch Nr :	Loch- abstd.	Vor- gabe	BOHR- Teufe m	,L A D E- L Sprengst Sprengsto	ND Z Ū N offmenge ffsorte	DPLAN: in kg Gesamt- mence	Besatz	Zünder:
1			1.	- 0	1 /31	0.172		Stufe
2			1 AADI	Superge	( JBRIA	- 3/45	ly .	
3	3,6	3.6	12 13 04	5216	FPI	ALICON		
4		917	V 2721	Trillex	501	71-150 h	1	
5			Jt DL	End	1 24.	71-0		
6				Cinvigi	t	+5 kg		
-7								
8				P= 3	00m	1 805: 150	Pp	
9						-)	7	
10	_							
11				1 .				1
12				Vie	10x1 3	77		
13								
14				1	1			90
15				K	5= 1,4			
15					./			
18								
19								
20								
à.						-	Concernant of	
-								
ø								
	ohllöch	er: T	iefe:		Comercia		point services	
•••• F	ächerlö	cher:T:	iefe:	m —	oprengsto	GD1	kg ANC kg ANC	kg kg
al Do	- 1 CO/	ZUSam	ienscellung	·	· · · · ·	ANC - Ante	eil:	- 1
ave 1.1	45/	350		kg	Kopfli	öcher		%
OWOTI	30/	350		kg	Sonst:	ige-Löcher		%
ambant	30/	130		kg	Tusiles		•••••	•••••70
empr1	· 10	se	••••••	kg	Zündmit	tel:	360	
lowola	in)				Det. Zi Zünder	Indschnur		· · · · m
					Haufur	(Type)		St.
					Sport Cr	N	01 <sup></sup> =	t
_					opez.sp	rengstorive	rorauch=	g/t
A CONTRACTOR OF A		2200 - 2200 - 200			Bemerku	ingen:		

Figure 71: Shot-firer's record of the 9<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 72: Shot-firer's plan of the 9<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

#### **APPENDIX B: VIBRATION EVENT REPORTS**



Figure 73: Vibrations event report from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 74: Vibrations event report from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 75: Vibrations event report from the 7<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]



Figure 76: Vibrations event report from the 8<sup>th</sup> blast, Source [27]

92

## **APPENDIX C: SURVEYED SHOT PLANS**



Figure 77: Surveyed shot plan of the borehole starting points from the 3<sup>rd</sup> blast



Figure 78: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 4<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 79: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 80: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the  $6^{th}$  blast



Figure 81: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 7<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 82: Surveyed shot plan for the borehole starting points from the 8<sup>th</sup> blast

### APPENDIX D: PICTURES OF THE SURVEYED WALLS WITH

#### THE **3G-S**OFTWARE



Figure 83: 3G-front-picture from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 84: 3G-side-picture left from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 85: 3G-side-picture right from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 86: Plan view of the wall from the 5<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 87: 3G-front-picture of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (left side)



Figure 88: 3G-side-picture of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (left side)



Figure 89: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (left side)



Figure 90: Plan view of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (left side)


Figure 91: 3G-front-picture of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (right side)



Figure 92: 3G-side-picture of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (right side)



Figure 93: Picture of the first borehole with burdens from the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (right side)



Figure 94: Plan view of the 7<sup>th</sup> blast (right side)



Figure 95: 3G-front-picture of the 9<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 96: 3G-side-picture from the 9<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 97: Plan view from the 9<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 98: 3G-front-picture of the 10<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 99: 3G-side-picture of the 10<sup>th</sup> blast



Figure 100: Plan view of the 10<sup>th</sup> blast

#### **APPENDIX E: DATA SHEETS FROM LOADING THE HOLES**

 Table 18: Data sheet of the 2<sup>nd</sup> blast

# Blast date 01.09.2006 (12:15)

Bench: 1050

			Chargo				Stemming		
No	Dot No	Golatino	Emulsion		Hoight	Kind	Notos		
NO.	Det. NO.	(Cortridgee)	(Cortridgee)		(m)	KIIIG	Notes		
1	0	(Cantiluges)	(Cartridges)	(Bay)	(11)	dill cuttings			
2	1	3		2	4	dill cuttings			
2	2	3		2 25	36	dill cuttings			
1	2	3		2,25	3,0	dill cuttings			
4	5	3		25	4	dill cuttings			
6	6	3		2,5	3,5	dill cuttings			
7	8	3		2	3,5	dill cuttings			
8	1/	1		25	35	dill cuttings			
0 0	14	3		2,5	3,5	dill cuttings			
10	17	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings			
11	10	3		2 25	3.5	dill cuttings			
12	0	3		1 75	37	dill cuttings			
13	1	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings			
1/	2	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings			
15	<u> </u>	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings			
16	5	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings			
17	7	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings	water in hole		
18	9	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings	water in hole		
19	10	3		2 25	3.5	dill cuttings			
20	11	3		1.5	3.5	dill cuttings			
21	12	3		2 25	3.5	dill cuttings			
22	14	3		2 25	3.5	dill cuttings			
23	16	5		1 75	3.5	dill cuttings			
24	18	5		1	3.5	dill cuttings			
25	0	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings	stemming in between		
26	2	3		2.5	3.5	dill cuttings	stemming in between		
27	3	3		1.75	3.5	dill cuttings			
28	4	3		2	3.5	dill cuttings	stemming in between		
29	6	3		2.5	3.5	dill cuttings	stemming in between		
30	7	3		2.25	3.5	dill cuttinas	stemming in between		
31	9	3		1.5	3	dill cuttinas	<u> </u>		
32	11	3		2.25	3.5	dill cuttinas			
33	13	3		2	3.7	dill cuttinas			
34	15	3		2,25	4	dill cuttings			
35	17	3		2	3.5	dill cuttinas			
36	18	3		1,25	3,5	dill cuttings			
37	1	3		2,25	3,5	dill cuttings			
38	8	3		1.5	3.6	dill cuttings			
39	10	3		1,75	3.5	dill cuttings			
40	12	3		2,25	3.5	dill cuttings			
41	13	3		2	3,5	dill cuttings			
42	15	3		2	3,5	dill cuttings			

106
-----

43						hole not loaded because blocked
44	19	3	2	3,5	dill cuttings	
45	20	5	2	3,5	dill cuttings	water in hole

# Blast date 5.9.2006 (13:45) Bench:1060

			Charge			Stemming	
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)		
1	0		8	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
2	0		8	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
3	0		9,5	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
4	1		4	2,5	3,8	drill cuttings	
5	1		8,5	1,5	3,8	drill cuttings	
6	2		10	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
7	2		9	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
8	3		5	2	3,6	drill cuttings	
9	3	1,5	3	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
10	4	1,25	4	2	3,8	drill cuttings	
11	4		4	2,5	3,8	drill cuttings	
12	5		4	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
13	4		7	1,5	4,5	drill cuttings	
14	5		7	1,75	3,6	drill cuttings	
15	6		4	2,25	4	drill cuttings	
16	6		4	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
17	7	0,5			1,7	drill cuttings	
18	7		4	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
19	8		4	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
20	8		4	2,5	3,8	drill cuttings	
21	9		10		3,8	drill cuttings	
22	9		4	2	3,8	drill cuttings	
23	10		4	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	
24	10		1	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
25	11		4	0,25	3	drill cuttings	
26	11		8	1,25	4	drill cuttings	
27	12		4	2	3,8	drill cuttings	
28	12		3	1,25	3	drill cuttings	
29	13		2	0,5	3	drill cuttings	
30	14		6	1	3,1	drill cuttings	
31	15		3	0,75	4	drill cuttings	

### Blast date 7.9.2006 (13:45) Bench:1095

			Charge		Stemming				
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes		
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)				
1	0	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
2	0	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
3	1	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
4	4	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
5	1	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
6	2	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
7	2	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
8	3	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
9	3	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
10	4	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
11	5	1	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
12							hole not loaded because of cavity		
13	5	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
14	6	2	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
15	6	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
16	7	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
17	7	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
18	8	3			3,5	drill cuttings			
19							hole not loaded because of cavity		
20	8	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
21	9	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
22	9	1	2	1,75	3,3	drill cuttings			
23	10	2	2	1,25	3	drill cuttings			
24	10	4		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
25	11	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
26	11	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
27	12	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
28	12	1	2	1	>5	drill cuttings			
29	13	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
30	13	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
31	14	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
32	14	3		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
33	15	3		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
34	15	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
35	16	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
36	16	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
37	17	1	2	1,5	3	drill cuttings			
38	17	1	2	1,5	3,2	drill cuttings			
39	17	1	2	1	3,5	drill cuttings			
40	18	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
41	18	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
42	19	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			

43	19	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
44	20	1	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
45	20	1	2	1,75	3	drill cuttings	

# Blast date 9.9.2006 (13:00) Bench:1050

			Charge			Ster	nming
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)		
1	2	1	3	1,75	4	drill cuttings	stemming in between
2	4	1	3	2	3,7	drill cuttings	
3	7	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
4	9	1	3	2,5	3,7	drill cuttings	
5	10	1	3	2	3,7	drill cuttings	
6	12	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
7	13	1	3	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings	
8	15	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
9	16	1	3	2	4	drill cuttings	
10	17	1	3	1,75	3,3	drill cuttings	
11	18	1	3	2	3,8	drill cuttings	
12	19	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
13	2	1	3	2,25	3,8	drill cuttings	stemming in between
14	5	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
15	7	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
16	9	1	3	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings	
17	11	1	3	2	3,7	drill cuttings	
18	12	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
19	14	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
20	15	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
21	17	1	6	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
22	18	1	6	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
23	19	1	5	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
24	20	1	16	0,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
25	3	1	3	1,5	4	drill cuttings	stemming in between
26	5	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
27	8	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings	
28	10	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
29	11	1	6	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
30	13	1	6	1,5	4	drill cuttings	
31	14	1	6	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
32	16	1	15		3,7	drill cuttings	
33	3	1	3	1,75	4	drill cuttings	
34	6	1	7	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	
35	8	1	6	2	3,8	drill cuttings	
36	4	1	3	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings	
37	6	1	6	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	

#### Blast date 15.09.2006 (12:00) Bench: 1050

			Charge			Ste	emming		
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes		
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)				
1	0	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
2	0	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
3	0	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
4	1	1	2	1	3,5	drill cuttings			
5	1	1			3,5	drill cuttings			
6	1	2	1		3,5	drill cuttings			
7	2	1	3	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
8	1	2	3	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
9	2	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
10	5	1	3	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
11	6	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
12	8	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
13	10	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
14	12	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
15	14	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
16	4	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
17	3	1	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
18	3	1	2	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
19	3	1	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
20	2	1	3	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
21	4	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
22	6	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
23	7	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
24	9	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
25	11	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
26	13	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
27	15	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
28	5	1	3	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
29	4	1	3	3	3,5	drill cuttings			
30	5	1	4	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
31	6	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
32	7	1	4	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
33	7	1	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings			
34	9	1	3	2,5	3,5	drill cuttings			
35	11	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
36	13	1	4	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
37	15	1	3	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
38	8	1	3	1,5	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between		
39	10	1	3	1,75	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between		
40	12	1	3	1,5	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between		
41	14	1	3	1,5	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between		
42	16	1	3	2	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between		

43	17	1	3	1,25	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between
44	17	1	3	1,75	3	drill cuttings	stemming in between

## Blast date 19.09.2006 (12:00) Bench: 1085

			Charge			Stemi	Stemming		
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes		
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)				
1	0	4		2	3,8	drill cuttings			
2	0	4		2	3,5	drill cuttings			
3	1	4		2	3,8	drill cuttings			
4	1	4		1,75	3,5	drill cuttings			
5	3	4	3	1,5	3,8	drill cuttings	water in hole		
6	4	4		2	3,8	drill cuttings			
7	5	4	7	0,5	4	drill cuttings	water in hole		
8	7	4	2	1,5	3,8	drill cuttings	water in hole		
9	8	4	8	0,75	3,8	drill cuttings	water in hole		
10	2	4		2	3.8	drill cuttings			
11	4	4		1.5	4.3	drill cuttings			
12	5	4		2.5	4	drill cuttings			
13	6	4		1.5	4	drill cuttings			
14	8	4	6	1	4	drill cuttings	water in hole		
15	9	4	2	1.5	3.8	drill cuttinas	water in hole		
16	2	4	2	1.5	4	drill cuttings	water in hole		
17	3	4	4	1.25	4	drill cuttinas	water in hole		
18	5	4	2	1.25	4.2	drill cuttings	water in hole		
19	6	4		2.25	3.8	drill cuttings			
20	7	4	2.25	2.25	3.8	drill cuttinas	water in hole		
21	9	4	2	1.25	3.8	drill cuttings	water in hole		
22	9	4	7	0.5	3.8	drill cuttings	water in hole		
23	4	4		1	3.8	drill cuttings			
24	6	4		2	4	drill cuttings			
25	7	4		0,25	2	drill cuttings	hole got blocked after cartridges were loaded		
26	8	4		1,5	4,5	drill cuttings			
27	10	4		2	4	drill cuttings			
28	11	4		2	4,2	drill cuttings			
29	12	4		3	5	drill cuttings			
30	13	4	2	2	5	drill cuttings			
31	13	4	6	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
32	14	4		2	4	drill cuttings			
33	15	4	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings			
34	16	4		2	4	drill cuttings			
35	13	4		1,25	4,2	drill cuttings			
36	14	4		1,5	4,2	drill cuttings			
37	15	4		1.5	4	drill cuttings			
38	17	11	2	0,25	4	drill cuttings			
39	10	4		2,25	3.8	drill cuttings			
40	11	4		2	4	drill cuttinas			
41	12	10	3		4	drill cuttings			

42	12	10	3		3,5	drill cuttings
43	14	10	3		4	drill cuttings
44	10	4	2	1	4	drill cuttings
45	11	4	2	1,5	4	drill cuttings
46	11	10	3		4	drill cuttings
47	15	4	3	0,75	4	drill cuttings

#### Blast date 26.09.2006 (13:45) Bench: 1050 new south part of the mine

		-	Charge			Stemmi	'na
No	Det No	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes
	200.110.	(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)		
1	13	2.5	(Ourinagoo)	1.25	3.5	drill cuttinas	
2	12	2.5		1 25	3.5	drill cuttings	
3	9	2.5		1.5	3.5	drill cuttings	
4	8	2.5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
5	7	2,5		1,25	3.5	drill cuttings	
6	6	2,5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
7	5	2,5		1,20	3.5	drill cuttings	
8	<u>و</u> م	2,5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
9	4	2,5		1,20	3.5	drill cuttings	
10	3	2,5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
11	14	2,5		1,20	3.5	drill cuttings	
12	13	2,5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
13	12	2,5		1,20	3.5	drill cuttings	
14	10	2,5		1	3.5	drill cuttings	
15	8	2,5		1 25	3.5	drill cuttings	
16	7	2,5		1.25	3.5	drill cuttings	
17	6	2,5		1.25	35	drill cuttings	
18	5	2.5		1	3.5	drill cuttings	
19	5	2,5		1	3.5	drill cuttings	
20	15	2,5		1	3.5	drill cuttings	
21	14	2,5		1 25	3.5	drill cuttings	
22	12	2,5		1,20	3.5	drill cuttings	
23	10	2,5		1,0	3.5	drill cuttings	
24	9	2,5		1,0	3.5	drill cuttings	
25	8	2.5		1,0	3.5	drill cuttings	
26	6	2,0		1 75	3.5	drill cuttings	
27	9	3		2	3.5	drill cuttings	
28	10	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
29	13	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
30	14	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
31	15	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
32	16	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
33	16	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
34	17	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
35	17	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
36	16	4		2.5	3,9	drill cuttings	
37	15	4		2.5	3,9	drill cuttings	
38	14	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
39	13	4		2.5	3.9	drill cuttings	
40	3	2.5		1.25	3.3	drill cuttings	
41	2	2.5		1,25	3	drill cuttings	
42	2	2		1,25	3	drill cuttings	

43	1	2	1	3	drill cuttings	
44	1	2	0,75	3	drill cuttings	
45	1	2	0,75	2,8	drill cuttings	
46	0	1	0,75	2,8	drill cuttings	
47	0	1	0,5	2,8	drill cuttings	
48	0	1	0,5	2,8	drill cuttings	
49	0	1	0,125	2,8	drill cuttings	
50	0	1	0,125	2,5	drill cuttings	
51					drill cuttings	does not exist
52					drill cuttings	hole blocked
53	1	2	1	2,8	drill cuttings	
54	1	2	1	2,8	drill cuttings	
55	2	2	1	3	drill cuttings	
56	2	2,5	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
57	2	2,5	1,5	3,3	drill cuttings	
58	3	2,5	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
59	3	2,5	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
60	4	2,5	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings	
61	4	2,5	1,25	3	drill cuttings	
62	5	2,5	1,25	3	drill cuttings	
63	5	2,5	1,5	3	drill cuttings	
64	7	2,5	1	3,5	drill cuttings	

## Blast date 28.09.2006 (13:45) Bench: 1040

		Charge			Stemming			
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes	
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)			
1	17	4		2,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
2	15	4		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
3	13	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
4	11	4		2,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
5	9	4,5		2,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
6	10	4		2,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
7	8	11		3,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
8	7	4		2,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
9	4	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
10	5	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
11	5	2	6		3,5	drill cuttings		
12	4	2	6		3,5	drill cuttings		
13	6	4		2,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
14	7	14	2	2,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
15	9	7	8	2,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
16	11	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
17	13	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
18	15	4		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
19	16	4		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
20	14	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
21	12	4		2	3,5	drill cuttings		
22	10	4		2,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
							cavity, therefore	
	0	-		4 5	2.5	alatti avattia oʻr	stemming in	
23	8	5		1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	between	
24	b 10	2	6	2,25	3,5	arili cuttings		
25	12	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
26	14	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
27	16	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
28	17	4		2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		

# Blast date 05.10.2006 (13:45) Bench: 1050

		Charge			Stemming			
No.	Det. No.	Gelatine	Emulsion	ANFO	Height	Kind	Notes	
		(Cartridges)	(Cartridges)	(Bag)	(m)			
1	0	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
2	0	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
3	0	2	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
4	1	2	3	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
5	1	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
6	1	2	2	1,5	3,3	drill cuttings		
7							hole blocked, not charged	
8	2	2	2	2,25	3,3	drill cuttings		
9	2	2	2	1,75	3,3	drill cuttings		
10	2	2	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
11	3	2	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
12	3	2	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
13	3	2	4	1,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
14	4	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
15	4	2	2	1	3,5	drill cuttings		
16	4	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
17	5	2	2	1,75	2,8	drill cuttings		
18	5	2	2	2,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
19	5	2	2	1,25	3	drill cuttings		
20	6	2	4		3,5	drill cuttings		
21	6	2	1	1	3	drill cuttings		
22	6	1	2	1	3	drill cuttings		
23	4	2	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings	stemming in between	
24	5	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
25	7	2	4	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
26	7	2	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
27	10	2	2	1,75	3,5	drill cuttings	stemming in between	
28	10	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
29	11	2	2	2,25	3,5	drill cuttings		
30	11	2	2	0,75	3,5	drill cuttings		
31	12	2	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	stemming in between	
32	12	2	2	2	3,5	drill cuttings		
33	13	2	2	0,75	2	drill cuttings		
34	13	2	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings	stemming in between	
35	14	2	2	1,5	3,5	drill cuttings		
36	15	2	9		3	drill cuttings	water in hole	
37	7	2	10		3,5	drill cuttings	water in hole	
38						drill cuttings	hole blocked, not charged	
39	8	2	2	1	3	drill cuttings		
40	8	1	1	1	3	drill cuttings		
41	8	1	1	1,25	3	drill cuttings		
42	9	1		0,5	2,5	drill cuttings		

43	9	1	0,75	2,5	drill cuttings	
44	9	1	0,75	2,5	drill cuttings	